
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

January 19 2022 Regular Board
Meeting
January 19 2022 Regular Board Meeting

January 19 2022 Regular Board Meeting

Agenda January 19, 2022 Regular Board Meeting

January 19 2022, Regular Board Meeting Agenda ...................................................... 3

Approval of the Agreement between Northern Inyo Healthcare District and Eastern
Sierra Emergency Physicians

Board of Directors Coversheet, Eastern Sierra Emergency Physicians Renew ...... 6
Eastern Sierra Emergency Physicians Agreement ..................................................... 7

Approval of District Board Resolution 22-01, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge
Loan Program

Board of Directors Coversheet, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan  ..... 20
District Board Resolution 22-01, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan  .... 21

Policy and Procedure Approval, Charge Capture Policy and Procedure

Charge Capture Policy and Procedure ....................................................................... 24

Recommendation to Appoint a Board Member to the Compliance and Business Ethics
Committee

Board of Directors Coversheet, Recommendation to Appoint a Board Membe .... 28

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Orthopedic Services December Highlight

Board of Directors Coversheet, NIHD Orthopedics Services December Highli ..... 29
NIHD Orthopedic Services December Highlight ........................................................ 30

Chief of Staff

Medical Executive Report ............................................................................................ 31
Radiology Privilege Form ............................................................................................ 32

Consent Agenda

District Board Resolution 22-02, to continue to allow Board meetings to be h ..... 37
December 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes ................................................ 39
December 29, 2021 Special Board Meeting Minutes ................................................. 46
Operating Room Flooring Replacement Update ....................................................... 47

Page 1 of 109



Chief Executive Officer Report ................................................................................... 48
Chief Medical Officer Report ....................................................................................... 93
Chief Nursing Officer Report ....................................................................................... 95
Financial and Statistical reports as of November 30, 2021 .................................... 105
Approval of Policies and Procedures ....................................................................... 107

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 2 of 109

http://www.tcpdf.org


 
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 19, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to join this meeting: 
    TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM:  (A link is also available on the NIHD Website) 
https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09 
Meeting ID: 213 497 015 
Password: 608092 
 
PHONE CONNECTION: 
888 475 4499 US Toll-free 
877 853 5257 US Toll-free 
Meeting ID: 213 497 015 
 
The Governor of the State of California has issued Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain 
requirements of the Brown Act.  Please be advised that the NIHD Board Room is closed to the public and 
that some or all of the District Board members may attend this meeting telephonically or via video 
conference. This meeting will be accessible to members of the public virtually and telephonically who 
seek to observe and address the Board of Directors, including giving public comments.  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

     
1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. Public Comment:  The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address 

the Board of Directors.  Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public 

comment unless otherwise modified by the Chair.  Speaking time may not be granted and/or 

loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless 

arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson 

speak on their behalf.  Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive.  The general Public 

Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda.  Public comments on agenda items 

should be made at the time each item is considered. 

3. New Business: 

Page 3 of 109

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09


Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, January 19, 2022 
 
 

1/12/2022, 3:40 PM 

A. COVID 19 Community Update (Board will receive this update)  

B. Approval of the renewal agreement between Northern Inyo Healthcare District and Eastern 

Sierra Emergency Physicians (Board will consider the approval of this renewal agreement)  

C. Approval of District Board Resolution 22-01, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan 

Program (Board will consider the approval of this District Board Resolution)  

D. Policy and Procedure Approval, Charge Capture Policy and Procedure (Board will consider 

the approval of this Policy and Procedure) 

E. Recommendation to Appoint a Board Member to the Compliance and Business Ethics 

Committee (Board will consider the appointment of a representative)  

F. Discussion of existing Board Committee’s (Board will discuss this item) 

G. Northern Inyo Healthcare District Orthopedic Services December Highlight (Board will 

receive this information) 

4. Chief of Staff Report, Sierra Bourne MD: 

A. Radiology Privilege Form (Board will consider the approval of this form)  

B. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (Board will receive this information) 
           ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                                     Consent Agenda  

5. Approval of District Board Resolution 22-02, to continue to allow Board meetings to be held 

virtually (Board will consider the approval of this District Board Resolution) 

6. Approval of minutes of the December 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting (Board will consider the 

approval of these minutes)  

7. Approval of minutes of the December 29, 2021 Special Board Meeting (Board will consider the 

approval of these minutes) 

8. Operating Room Flooring Replacement Update (Board will consider accepting this update)  

9. Chief Executive Officer Report (Board will consider accepting this report) 

10. Chief Medical Officer Report (Board will consider accepting this report) 

11. Chief Nursing Officer Report (Board will consider accepting this report) 

12. Financial and Statistical reports as of November 30, 2021 (Board will consider accepting this 

report) 

13. Approval of Policies and Procedures (Board will consider the renewal of this Policy and 

Procedure) 

A. Identity Theft Red Flags Rule Policy 

Page 4 of 109



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, January 19, 2022 
 
 

1/12/2022, 3:40 PM 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Reports from Board members (Board will provide this information).  

15. Public comments on closed session items. 

16. Adjournment to Closed Session to/for: 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision  

     (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9).  Name of case:  Inyo County LAFCO and NIHD v.  

     SMHD, Case No. 3-2015-8002247-CY-WM-GDS-Sacramento County.  

17. Adjournment. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 

participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 

prior to the meeting. 

Page 5 of 109



Page 6 of 109



AGREEMENT, NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
AND 

EASTERN SIERRA EMERGENCY PHYSICIANS 
 

THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE AND ENTERED INTO this 1st day of March, 2022, by and between 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District (hereinafter referred to as “District”) and Eastern Sierra Emergency 
Physicians Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “ESEP”). 
 

I. RECITALS 
1. District is a California healthcare district organized and operating under the authority of 

Health and Safety Code section 32000, et seq. (hereinafter referred to as “The Healthcare 
District Law”), and governed by a Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “Board”). 

2. District operates Northern Inyo Hospital (hereinafter “Hospital”), an acute care general 
hospital located at 150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, Inyo County, California, which includes 
inpatient and outpatient services, a Rural Health Clinic, and Northern Inyo Associates, a 
group of 1206 (b) outpatient clinics 

3. ESEP is a California professional corporation, dated August 10, 2010, which contracts with 
qualified and licensed physicians licensed to practice medicine in the State of California and 
who are certified by the American Board of Emergency Medicine, The American Board of 
Internal Medicine, The American Board of Family Medicine, or The American Board of 
Anesthesia, or are board-eligible, and who are qualified for, and practicing, one or more of 
the medical specialties and applicable subspecialties of emergency medicine, hospitalist 
medicine, and anesthesia (hereinafter referred to as “Physician Services”). ESEP may, from 
time to time, negotiate with the District to include new, or remove existing Physician 
Services.  

4. The District desires to retain the services of ESEP as part of the District's Physician Services 
program inclusive of inpatient, outpatient, and call services on a non-exclusive basis.  

5. The parties enter this agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) in order to provide a 
full statement of their respective responsibilities in connection with the provision of the 
Physician Services provided during the term of this Agreement. 
 

Wherefore, in consideration of the promises set forth below, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 
II. COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES 

1. Covenants of the District 
1.1 Space:  District shall make space available to ESEP in its emergency department, medical 

surgical unit, intensive care unit, operating rooms, preoperative unit, and outpatient 
clinics (hereinafter referred to as “Hospital and Clinics”)  sufficient to allow ESEP to 
provide Physician Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. District shall 
accord ESEP full access to Hospital and Clinics and use of all facilities of the Hospital 
and Clinics relevant to Physician Services. These spaces shall be reasonably staffed and 
provided with all necessary fixtures, supplies, equipment, and furniture by District at its 
sole cost. District shall, at their sole expense, provide furnished call rooms for the on duty 
emergency physician and hospitalist physician for their exclusive use while on duty. 
District shall maintain these spaces to include, at a minimum, a bed, desk, and computer 
with electronic health record access.  

1.2 Equipment and Supplies:  District at its expense shall provide ESEP all necessary 
expendable and non-expendable equipment and supplies reasonably necessary for the 
efficient and safe provision of Physician Services in accordance with District policies and 
the terms of this Agreement.  

Page 7 of 109



2 of 13 
 

1.3 Maintenance: District shall at its sole cost and expense maintain and repair all equipment 
and shall provide utilities and services reasonably required for ESEP to fulfill the terms 
of this Agreement.  

1.4 Liability Insurance: District shall, at its sole expense, procure and maintain professional 
liability (malpractice) insurance coverage for the benefit of ESEP and all physicians and 
physician extenders contracted or employed by ESEP (hereinafter referred to as ESEP 
Providers”) to provide Physician Services and, under such malpractice insurance 
coverage or a medical director or director and officer or other liability policy maintained 
by the District, liability coverage of ESEP and ESEP Providers with respect to  the 
administrative responsibilities inclusive of the medical directorship set forth in Exhibit B 
as well as any elected or appointed leadership position within the medical staff and/or 
District. This malpractice and other liability coverage will be in force and effective at all 
times during the term of this Agreement. The policy limits of such coverage shall be at 
least $1,000,000.00 for any one occurrence and $3,000,000.00 annual aggregate coverage 
per ESEP Provider. If the District’s malpractice insurance or other insurance required by 
this Agreement is terminated or converted at any time, then District shall also acquire 
‘tail’ coverage in the above stated amounts with a retroactive date to the beginning of the 
Agreement, in addition to the required coverage for the remaining duration of the 
Agreement. ESEP agrees to cooperate with District in connection with the purchase and 
maintenance of such coverage. If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, District 
shall likewise maintain uninterrupted insurance for ESEP and ESEP Providers who 
provide services under this Agreement, including but not limited to providing tail 
coverage, such that the services provided by ESEP and ESEP Providers during the term 
of the Agreement shall be covered even after termination of this Agreement. District shall 
provide ESEP and ESEP Providers with copies of certificates of coverage as needed or 
requested. ESEP and ESEP Providers, in their discretion, may procure and maintain any 
professional liability insurance coverage at their own expense in addition to, or in place 
of, the coverage provided for herein. 

1.5 Non-Physician Personnel: District, at its expense, shall provide the services of licensed 
registered and vocational nurses and other non-physician technicians and assistants 
necessary for the efficient and safe provision of Physician Services. District shall be 
responsible for the selection, management, direction, and control of such personnel for 
employment purposes, except that ESEP and ESEP Providers shall at times provide a 
supervisory role and, when acting in a supervisory capacity, be responsible for the 
direction and control of such personnel for all professional medical matters related to 
Physician Services. All staffing responsibilities of the District shall be in accordance with 
District policy. As of the date of this Agreement, District attests that District has, and 
intends to maintain adequate staffing for ESEP to efficiently and safely provide Physician 
Services under the terms of this Agreement. District will make every reasonable effort to 
notify ESEP of staffing limitations or changes related to Physician Services.  
 

2. Covenants of ESEP 
2.1 Services: ESEP shall provide Physician Services on a prompt and continuing basis in 

accordance-with the terms of this Agreement. Services shall be provided by duly licensed 
physicians and/or physician extenders pursuant to “Exhibit A” of this Agreement. It is 
expected that ESEP will provide clinic and/or hospital care of patients on all contracted 
days inclusive of weekend days and holidays and when required or otherwise mutually 
agreed by the parties. ESEP and ESEP providers will be expected to be available at the 
premises of District during scheduled hours. District and ESEP shall set the initial 
scheduled work hours within ten (10) days of the mutual execution of this Agreement and 
thereafter shall work together to provide a mutually beneficial scheduling calendar for the 

Page 8 of 109



3 of 13 
 

duration of this Agreement. In the event a scheduled ESEP Provider will not be available 
for an assigned shift, ESEP shall, whenever possible, provide District no less than forty 
eight (48) hours notice of any personnel change. In the event ESEP Provider is 
unavailable for an assigned shift and no alternate ESEP Provider is available to cover the 
assigned shift, District shall, at their sole expense, procure alternate coverage for 
Physician Services until such a time that ESEP and ESEP Providers are able to provide 
Physician Services under the terms of this Agreement. In such an event wherein ESEP 
Providers are unable to provide Physician Services District shall only assume sole 
responsibility for Physician Services if failure of ESEP and ESEP providers to provide 
Physician Services is reasonable and on good cause. 

2.2 Personnel: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, ESEP may, with 
prior written approval by District, select and employ or otherwise contract with duly 
licensed physicians and physician extenders as ESEP, in the sole exercise of their 
discretion, deems necessary so long as such actions abide by, and are in accordance with, 
applicable contractual and employment laws and regulations. During the term of this 
Agreement, ESEP and ESEP Providers shall maintain membership on the Hospital’s 
medical staff and privileges appropriate for Physician Services that ESEP is required to 
provide pursuant to this Agreement. ESEP and ESEP Providers will abide by the Medical 
Staff bylaws and any policies and procedures applicable to Physician Services at the 
District.  ESEP and all ESEP Providers shall be board certified or board eligible, unless 
specifically exempted from this provision by the medical staff as per relevant bylaws or 
policy. Physician extenders may provide services in the Hospital and Clinics only under 
the supervision of a qualified Physician. Physician extenders shall be credentialed 
through the District medical staff office and in accordance with the medical staff bylaws. 
Physician extenders will be required to abide by minimal proficiency standards and 
licensure of same. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the terms 
and conditions by which ESEP Providers are compensated by ESEP shall be at the sole 
and exclusive discretion of ESEP. In contracting with or employing any ESEP Provider, 
ESEP shall include the following contractual terms for any ESEP Provider who shall 
provide Physician Services under this Agreement. ESEP and ESEP Providers will not 
engage in any activities during the eight (8) hour period immediately preceding the 
beginning of the scheduled shift that will directly cause ESEP or ESEP Providers to 
provide a level of care to patients that falls below the standard of care or endangers 
patient safety. ESEP and ESEP Providers shall adhere to policies and bylaws regarding 
professional conduct and behavior required by the District and Medical Staff which apply 
to all providers who provide services at the District and which have been provided to 
ESEP and ESEP Providers. ESEP shall not continue to utilize an ESEP Provider for 
Physician Services under this Agreement who has been unavailable for a scheduled shift 
without more than 72 hours prior notice more than three (3) times in any year, except on 
finding of good cause.   

2.3 Admitting Privileges: ESEP and ESEP providers will apply for, and must receive 
approval of full privileges before the first scheduled shift. District will reasonably 
cooperate with ESEP and ESEP Providers to assist with the privilege approval process.  

2.4 Quality Assurance: ESEP shall, at the District’s expense, cooperate and assist in the 
collection of data regarding productivity, patient satisfaction, time to treatment, and any 
other matter on which the District is obligated or desires to collect data from all of its 
providers so long as same will not interfere with the ability of ESEP to provide services 
under this Agreement.  

2.5 Standards: ESEP shall at all times endeavor to operate the Physician Service in a manner 
consistent with the highest standards maintained for the operation of such services in 
comparable healthcare systems. It is understood from time to time the Medical Staff 

Page 9 of 109



4 of 13 
 

and/or District may set standards of professional practice and duties generally applicable 
to all medical staff members. ESEP shall comply with such directives given to it from the 
Medical Staff and shall also cause all ESEP Providers to do so.  

2.6 District and Governance Authorities: ESEP, in connection with their operation and 
conduct of the department, shall endeavor to comply with all applicable provisions of 
law, and other valid bylaws, rules and regulations and requirements of the Board, the 
Medical Staff, and the joint commission and other similar accrediting and certifying 
entities to which the District is subject, and governmental agencies having jurisdiction 
over, the operations of the District and services, licensing of healthcare practitioners, 
delivery of services to patients of governmentally regulated third party payers whose 
members or beneficiaries receive care at the District, including but not limited to rules 
and regulations promulgated with respect to the transfer of patients from the emergency 
department. 

2.7 Medical Records: ESEP and ESEP Providers shall at all times maintain complete and 
legible medical records, which accurately document the medical necessity of all services 
rendered to each patient who is treated. Said records shall be kept in the electronic health 
record (EHR) selected by the District. Such medical records shall be the property of the 
District and the District shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, safety and 
security of said medical records. At ESEP’s written request, District may, in its 
discretion, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, provide ESEP with copies of any 
records reflecting services performed by ESEP or ESEP Providers with respect to, any 
claims against ESEP or ESEP Providers in the nature of malpractice. District and ESEP 
shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations regarding the 
confidentiality and secure treatment of individually identifiable health information. Upon 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement, unless a patient specifies otherwise and 
in accordance with applicable law, District is entitled to the original medical records. For 
so long as it is required by applicable statute, District will retain medical records and 
make said records available to ESEP if reasonably necessary for any purpose including 
patient care and medical malpractice defense.  

2.8 Financial Records:  District and ESEP each shall have access to all financial records of 
the other party pertinent to the Physician Services rendered by ESEP and all billings and 
collections made by District under this Agreement for the purpose of any audit or 
examination necessary to comply with any request or demand to District or ESEP with 
which District or ESEP respectively, is legally obligated to comply in order to verify cost 
of services rendered under this Agreement.  

2.9 Laws and Regulations: ESEP shall maintain and make available all necessary books, 
documents and records in order to assure that District will be able to meet all 
requirements for participation and payment associated with public and private third party 
payment programs, including but not limited to matters covered by Section 1861(v) (1) 
(I) of the Social Security Act, as amended. With respect to Section 1861(v) (1) (I), it is 
agreed: Until expiration of four years after furnishing services pursuant to this 
Agreement, ESEP shall make available upon written request of the Secretary of Health 
and Human Services or the U.S. Controller General, or any of their duly authorized 
representatives, this Agreement, books, documents, and records of ESEP that are 
necessary to verify the nature and extent of costs incurred by District under this 
Agreement. If ESEP carries out any of the duties of this Agreement with a value of 
$10,000 or more over a twelve-month period through a subcontract with a related 
organization, such agreement must contain a clause to the effect that until the expiration 
of four years after the furnishing of services under the subcontract, the related 
organization shall make available, upon written request of the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services, the U.S. Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized 

Page 10 of 109



5 of 13 
 

representatives, the subcontract, and any books, documents and records of the related 
organization that are necessary to verify the nature and extent of costs incurred by 
District under this Agreement. 
 

III.  COMPENSATION AND BILLING 
1. Compensation 

1.1 Rates: ESEP and the District have agreed on compensation that District will pay to ESEP 
for the terms of this Agreement as set forth in “Exhibit B” attached hereto. Compensation 
as outlined in “Exhibit B” shall be adjusted commiserate with changes in staffing 
provided by ESEP for Physician Services. 

1.2 Patient Charges: ESEP will charge patients on a fee-for-service basis. Charges for 
services performed by ESEP shall be reasonable, consistent with fair and customary 
charges in the community, allow consideration for the level of skill or complexity 
provided, and shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations governing physician 
charges.  If necessary, the District and ESEP will cooperate in setting charge schedules 
and billing practices in order to facilitate compliance with billing guidelines established 
by third party payers and all applicable governmental regulations and in negotiating 
contracts with PPOs, HMOs, IPAs and other managed care organizations and third party 
payors that affect reimbursement for ESEP services. District shall provide ESEP with 
copies of all managed care or other payor contracts that govern reimbursement for ESEP 
Services (“ESEP Payor Contracts”). Any new ESEP Payor Contracts or material 
amendments to existing ESEP Payor Contracts shall require the approval of ESEP’s 
board or its designee or be within ESEP-approved payor contract parameters.  

1.3 Daily Memoranda and Billing: The District shall act as the designated billing and 
collection agent for ESEP and ESEP Providers. ESEP hereby assigns to District the right 
to bill and collect such charges. The District will comply with third party payor billing 
requirements and participate in quality incentive programs of the plans and/or 
government. In the event District bills patients through a single invoice combining 
District and ESEP’s charges, the billing shall clearly distinguish the professional fees of 
ESEP and ESEP Providers from those of District’s facility fees and those of any non-
ESEP professional fees included in the invoice. ESEP shall cooperate in the preparation 
and filing of such documentation and records as are necessary to allow District to 
efficiently perform its billing duties as set forth herein. District will collect and retain all 
facility fees related to Physician Services. If the collected portion of ESEP professional 
fees generated by Physician’s Services at any time is in excess of the compensation for 
Physician Services as set forth in “Exhibit B” District will compensate ESEP no less than 
the total amount of collected professional fees. As set forth herein, ESEP shall have the 
right to review District financial records to verify billing, collection, and payments. 
District agrees that for the purposes of billing transparency, that District will, no less than 
quarterly, provide ESEP with all financial records related to billings, collections, and 
services under this Agreement accompanied by all supporting financial documentation, 
balance sheets, and records. As ESEP is assigning its rights of payment, billing, and 
collection from the patients to District, the failure of District to collect fees or billings 
from patients shall not impact or affect any payments due and owing from District to 
ESEP for service performed and rendered to patients. District shall pay all monies owed 
to ESEP based on the rates set forth in “Exhibit B” no later than the fifteenth (15th) day 
of the month following the month of service. District’s obligation to pay ESEP for 
Physician Services rendered up to the date of termination shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement.  District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless ESEP in the 
event a third-party asserts a claim against ESEP arising from allegations that District 
engaged in improper billing for the services provided by ESEP under this Agreement.  

Page 11 of 109



6 of 13 
 

1.4 Payment of All Sums: Under this part all sums owed ESEP by District shall be made at 
the following address:  

  
Eastern Sierra Physicians  
P.O. Box 1448 
Bishop, CA 93515 

 
Or such other address or account as ESEP may designate from time to time by 
notice to the District. 

1.5 Reasonable Compensation. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, 
in no event shall ESEP’s total cash compensation during any Fiscal Year (pro-rated for 
partial years) for all services provided by ESEP pursuant to this Agreement exceed 
reasonable, fair market value compensation based on applicable state or federal law, 
regulations and guidelines and nationally recognized compensation survey data. The 
compensation referenced herein is intended to comply with applicable law governing 
physician compensation. 
 

IV. TERM 
1. Term: The term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years, or from March 1, 2022 to 

February 28, 2025 provided that the parties may amend the Agreement during the term in 
accordance with Section 5.5. Unless provided, in writing, one hundred and twenty (120) days 
prior to the end of the Agreement the terms of this Agreement shall be automatically renewed 
for an additional three (3) years, or from March 1, 2025 to February 28, 2028.   

2. Termination: This Agreement may not be terminated without cause. A party may terminate 
this Agreement on ninety (90) days written notice to the other party due to a material uncured 
breach of this Agreement by the other party, provided that the party in breach has been given 
thirty (30) days’ written notice and opportunity to cure, which cure period may precede or 
overlap or be coincident with the ninety day termination notice period and the other party has 
failed to cure the breach within that thirty-day period. District may terminate this Agreement 
and all ESEP rights hereunder immediately upon the occurrence of any of the following 
causes. 
2.1 Failure of ESEP to provide Physician Services coverage for a period in excess of two (2) 

consecutive days (48 hours) where ESEP or ESEP Provider was scheduled to provide 
service coverage and where failure to provide Physician Services was without good 
cause.  

2.2 Upon a determination by a majority of the Board, after consultation with the executive 
committee of the medical staff, that ESEP or any of its providers has been guilty of 
repeated acts of professional incompetence in response to which ESEP has not taken 
reasonable or appropriate steps.  

2.3 ESEP has, after reasonable prior written notice and an opportunity to rectify, failed to 
maintain the Physician Service in a manner consistent with the highest standards 
maintained for the operation of similar services in comparable Districts.  

2.4 ESEP is, after reasonable prior written notice and an opportunity to rectify, engaged in a 
continuing course of conduct that places District or its medical staff at risk of adverse 
action in connection with licensing or accreditation entities.  

2.5 ESEP is engaging in or about to engage in conduct that puts the District, its Medical 
Staff, or parties at risk of harm.  

2.6 Upon appointment of a receiver of ESEP’s assets, an assignment by ESEP of its assets for 
the benefit of its creditors, or any action taken or suffered by ESEP under any bankruptcy 
or insolvency act that is not remedied within thirty (30) days or said appointment, 
assignment, or action. 

Page 12 of 109



7 of 13 
 

3. Cooperation.  In the event of termination of the Agreement for any reason whatsoever, the 
parties agree to cooperate with each other to promptly resolve any outstanding financial, 
administrative or patient care issues.  The parties agree to cooperate to carry out the intent and 
purpose of this Agreement, including without limitation, the execution and delivery to the 
other party any further agreements or documents necessary for taking action reasonably 
required to effectuate the provisions of this Agreement. This clause shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 
 

V. OTHER MATTERS 
1. Indemnification: Each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other and its subsidiaries 

and/or affiliates, if applicable, from and against any and all claims, demands, loses, damages, 
judgments, penalties, fines, costs, charges, and other expenses (including without limitation 
litigation costs, reasonable attorneys’ fees, witness fees and expenses incident thereto) 
(collectively referred to as “Claims”), to the extent arising out of or relating to  the willful 
misconduct of a party or any misrepresentation of the warranties contained in this Agreement, 
provided that ESEP shall have no obligation to indemnify hereunder if the District has 
insurance available to cover the entirety of the Claims at issue.  In the event the District’s 
insurance limits do not cover the entirety of the Claims at issue, ESEP’s obligation to 
indemnify will be limited to amounts in excess of such limits.   

2. Compliance with Anti-Referral Laws: Each party intends to comply in all respects with all 
governing laws and regulations relating to fraud and abuse and prohibitions against 
inappropriate referrals and enter into this Agreement with the intent of conducting their 
relationship and implementing the agreements contained herein in full compliance with 
applicable federal, state, and local law, including without limitation, the Medicare/Medicaid 
anti-kickback statute (the “anti-kickback law”) and section 1877 of the Social Security Act 
(the Stark law), as amended. Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement, neither party will intentionally conduct itself under the terms of 
this Agreement in a manner that would constitute a violation of the anti-kickback law or the 
Stark law. Without limiting the generality of foregoing, the parties expressly agree that 
nothing contained in this Agreement shall require either party to refer any patients to the 
other, or to any affiliate or subsidiary of the other. Specifically, ESEP and ESEP Providers 
are free to secure and maintain contracts and privileges at other hospitals and to admit 
patients who require hospitalization to any hospital that is desired. ESEP is free to refer 
patients for diagnosis, treatment or testing to any qualified provider. If any legislation, 
regulation or government policy is passed or adopted, the effect of which would cause either 
party to be in violation of such laws due to the existence of any provision of this Agreement, 
then the parties agree to negotiate in good faith for a period of ninety (90) days to modify the 
terms of this Agreement to comply with applicable law. Should the parties hereto fail to agree 
upon modified terms to this Agreement within this time, then either party may immediately 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the other party.  

3. Independent Contractor: No relationship of employer, employee, agency, partner, joint 
venture, or other similar relationship is created by this Agreement, it being understood that 
ESEP will act hereunder as an independent contractor, and none of the providers performing 
services for ESEP, whether said providers be members, partners, employees, subcontractors, 
or otherwise, shall have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against District for 
vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker’s compensation benefits, 
or employee benefits of any kind; that District shall neither have nor exercise any control or 
direction over the methods by which ESEP shall perform its work and functions, which at all 
times shall be in strict accordance with currently approved methods and practices in their 
field; and the sole interest of District is to ensure that Physician Services shall be performed 
and rendered in a competent, efficient, and satisfactory manner and in accordance with the 

Page 13 of 109



8 of 13 
 

standards required by the Medical Staff and District. ESEP will be solely responsible for the 
payment of any applicable taxes, fees, benefits, worker’s compensation, etc. on behalf of 
ESEP and ESEP Providers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, District will coordinate and 
procure the professional liability insurance for ESEP and ESEP Providers as set forth herein, 
including but not limited to tail coverage upon termination of the Agreement, such that ESEP 
and ESEP Providers are covered even if claims occur after termination of this Agreement.  

4. Not Exclusive: It is specifically agreed and understood that ESEP and ESEP Providers shall 
not be required to limit their practices exclusively to the District, it being understood that 
additional enterprises and other Physician Services agreements shall be permissible. Provided 
however, neither ESEP nor ESEP Providers may engage in other agreements or enterprises 
that will materially interfere with the performance of services required under this Agreement. 

5. Amendment: This Agreement may be amended at any time by written agreement duly 
executed by both parties. 

6. Assignment: ESEP shall not assign, sell or transfer this Agreement or any interest therein 
without the consent of the District in writing first hand and obtained. Notwithstanding and of 
the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that, in the event that ESEP forms an alternative 
professional organization, duly authorized under the laws of this State to practice medicine, 
said alternative professional organization may be substituted in place of ESEP, with all of the 
rights and subject to all of the obligations of ESEP under the terms of this Agreement. Said 
substitution shall be effected upon ESEP by giving written notice to the District. 

7. Attorney’s Fees: In the event that suit, mediation or arbitration, is brought regarding the 
provisions of this Agreement or the enforcement thereof, the prevailing party shall be 
awarded its cost of suit and reasonable attorney’s fees as part of any judgement rendered 
therein. The parties agree to submit to mediation prior to the filing of any court proceeding. 

8. Notices: The notices required by this Agreement shall be effective if mailed, postage prepaid 
as follows: 

 
To District at: 

 
Northern Inyo Hospital Healthcare District  
Attn: Chief Executive Officer  

 150 Pioneer Lane 
 Bishop, CA 93514 
 
 To ESEP at: 
 
 Eastern Sierra Physicians 
 P.O. Box 1448 
 Bishop CA, 93515  
 

Or such other address as a Party may designate from time to time by notice to the 
other Party. 
 

9. Complete Agreement: This Agreement and its Exhibits, with any subsequent amendments, is 
the complete Agreement between the parties as to the terms covered herein. All of the 
promises, representations and warrantees of the parties in regard to the terms of this 
Agreement are stated herein, or in any amendment. Any prior promises representations or 
warrantees occurring in the course of negotiations are superseded by this Agreement. 

10. Validity: If any portion of this Agreement is found to be void or illegal, it shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of any other portion thereof. 

Page 14 of 109



9 of 13 
 

11. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts which, when 
read together shall constitute one document. A facsimile or other digital signature shall have 
the same force, effect and validity as an original.  

 
 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement at Bishop, California, on 
____________________________, 2022. 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
__________________________________________  
BY 
Kelli Davis, MBA 
 
ESEP: 
 
_________________________________________  
BY 
John Adam Hawkins, DO 
 

 
  

Page 15 of 109



10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A: SPECIALTIES; WORK LOCATION; WORK SCHEDULE; ETC. 
 

I. Specialties: Emergency Medicine, Internal Medicine, Family Medicine, Hospitalist Medicine, 
Anesthesia and applicable subspecialties thereof. 

 
II.          Practice:  

1. Emergency Medicine: ESEP shall provide eight thousand seven hundred and sixty (8760) 
hours per year of full time emergency medicine Physician Services in the emergency 
department. 

2. Hospitalist Medicine: ESEP shall provide hospitalist medicine Physician Services coverage 
in the intensive care unit and medical surgical unit. Hours per month shall be decided at least 
one (1) month in advance by agreement between the hospitalist medicine director and the 
chief medical officer or their designees. ESEP shall, in good faith, work towards providing 
eight thousand seven hundred and sixty (8760) hours per year of full time hospitalist 
coverage in the intensive care unit and medical surgical unit.  

3. Hospital Medicine Clinic: ESEP shall provide outpatient internal medicine and family 
medicine Physician Services as part of the Hospital Medicine Clinic, hereinafter referred to as 
“HMC”. HMC services shall be provided on a part time basis as determined by the hospitalist 
medicine director and chief medical officer or their designees.  

4. Anesthesia: ESEP shall provide part-time (1 FTE out of a 4 FTE coverage program) 
Anesthesia Physician Services. Schedule and staffing shall be agreed upon by ESEP and 
District at least one month prior to rendering of anesthesia Physician Services.  

5. Medication Assisted Treatment: ESEP shall provide outpatient part-time Medication Assisted 
Treatment Program, hereinafter referred to as “MAT Program”. Schedule and staffing shall 
be agreed upon by ESEP and District at least one month prior to rendering of MAT Physician 
Services.   

6. Work Location: Northern Inyo Associates Clinics, Rural Health Clinic, and Northern Inyo 
Hospital. 

 
III.        Minimum Performance Standards (if any): To be determined by ESEP medical director(s) and/or 
chief medical officer and/or the chief of staff and in accordance with the Medical Staff bylaws.  
 
 
IV. On-Call Coverage Schedule: ESEP shall provide eight thousand seven hundred and sixty (8760) 

hours per year of emergency medicine administrative call, e.g., back-up call. 
   
 

V. Additional Duties (if any): To abide by the bylaws of the Medical Staff; participate in the quality 
assessment and performance improvement activities of District as well as meet the requirements 
of meaningful use; code patient visits and procedures for billing purposes in a timely fashion. 

 
 
VI. Physician Leadership: ESEP shall provide medical directorship and physician leadership for the 

emergency medicine and hospitalists services as outlined in “Exhibit C”.  
 
 

  

Page 16 of 109



11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B: COMPENSATION 
 
I. Fair Market Value Base Compensation: $4,600,000 (four million six hundred thousand dollars) per 
year.  

1. Includes eight thousand seven hundred and sixty (8760) hours of Emergency Medicine Coverage 
2. Includes eight thousand seven hundred and sixty (8760) hours of Emergency Medicine back-up 

call 
3. Includes ESEP providing approximately 80-85% of 8760 eight thousand seven hundred and sixty 

(8760) hours per year of full time hospitalist coverage in the intensive care unit and medical 
surgical unit.  
3.1 Base Compensation shall be increased to $4,800,000 (four million eight hundred thousand 

dollars) per year upon full staffing for the provision of hospitalist Physician Services.   
4. Hospitalist Medical Director, $50, 000 (fifty thousand dollars). 
5. Emergency Services Medical Director, $50,000 (fifty thousand dollars). 

II. Hospitalist Clinic Compensation: $175 (one hundred and seventy five dollars) per hour of clinical 
work and $87.50 (eighty seven dollars and fifty cents) per clinic day for administrative duties.  

III. Emergency Medicine Double Coverage Compensation: $250 (two hundred and fifty dollars) per hour. 
 

IV. Inpatient Hospitalist Double Coverage Compensation: $190 (one hundred ninety dollars) per hour.  

V. Physician Anesthesiologist Compensation: $460,000 (four hundred and sixty thousand dollars) per 
physician anesthesiologist per year.  

1. $450,000 (four hundred and fifty thousand dollars) compensation for 1 FTE of operating room(s) 
coverage and call schedule hours for a 4 FTE anesthesia coverage program 

2. $10, 000 (ten thousand) ESEP administrative practice management stipend 

3. District shall reimburse ESEP an additional $215 (two hundred and fifteen dollars) per hour for 
each hour worked by an ESEP anesthesiologist that was an emergency fill-in for a shift or portion 
of a shift assigned to a non-ESEP provider.  

VI.   Medication Assisted Treatment Compensation: $223 (two hundred and twenty three dollars) per 
hour of clinical work and $25,000 (twenty five thousand dollars) per year for administrative duties.  

VII. Trans-Esophageal Echocardiogram Compensation: $300 (three hundred dollars) per study.  

VIII. Benefits:  
1. Liability Insurance: As noted in 2.1.4 above. 
2. Continuing Medical Education: Up to $3,000 (three thousand dollars) per year of 

reimbursement for continuing medical education for each ESEP Provider who works full- 
time and $2,000 (two thousand) for each ESEP Provider who works part-time. Eligibility is to 
be determined by ESEP under these criteria and the pertinent ESEP Physician Services 
Contracts and policies and procedures. This includes, but is not limited to medical 
conference registrations, fees, and travel expenses, medical licensure, medical exams, 
medical credentialing, medical society membership fees, medical educational media, and 
software and/or hardware utilized for continuing medical education purposes.  

3. Annual Raise: A 3.5% increase to compensation will be applied based on the previous year’s 
total compensation, annually, for the duration of the contract.  

4. Signing Bonus and Moving Expenses: District shall pay ESEP a $10,000 (ten thousand dollars) 
sign on bonus and up to $5,000 (five thousand dollars) for moving expenses with receipts 
per each full time physician recruited by ESEP. 

Page 17 of 109



12 of 13 
 

5. Loan Repayment: District shall pay newly recruited full time ESEP physicians $20,000 
(twenty thousand dollars) per year for three years for use towards repayment of educational 
loans.  

 

EXHIBIT C: PHYSICIAN LEADERSHIP 
 
 

The medical director and other leadership services ESEP agrees to provide to District under 
this Agreement include: 

 
1. Participates in District utilization review 
2. Collaborates with clinical and administrative director in establishing and evaluating policies, 

procedures, and protocols for Physician Services for patient care and medical developments, 
including new treatment modalities, drug information and other relevant developments. 

3. Collaborates with clinical and administrative directors in recommending, developing and 
implementing new services to be provided as part of Physician Service offerings. 

4. Identifies equipment needs and collaborates with clinical and administrative director in coordinating 
standardization of instrumentation, equipment and supplies for Physician Services. 

5. Assists District in providing public education and community outreach concerning Physician Services 
including, public speaking engagements for community services group, public forums, and seminars 
and health fairs sponsored by District. 

6. Collaborates with clinical and administrative directors in developing policies and procedures 
governing the use, availability and coordination of Physician Services. 

7. Attends meetings District campus, or elsewhere, at reasonable times, and for reasonable periods, in 
order to accomplish each of the above duties, and rendering reports, recommendations and 
evaluations as may be reasonably requested by District. 

8. Collaborates with clinical and administrative directors to ensure compliance with the District, Board, 
and Medical Staff bylaws, policies and procedures and rules and regulations, the recommendations of 
the Joint Commission and the requirements of all federal, state and municipal statutes, regulations, 
ordinances and directives governing the provision of healthcare services and the practice of medicine. 

9. Participation, and California Health & Safety Code 1250 et seq., and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder applicable to licensed healthcare facilities, and patient privacy and consent laws. 

10. Medical directors shall devote time in accordance with work schedule in performing the director 
services required under this Agreement to ensure the proper management of Physician Services. 

11. ESEP medical directors shall provide District with a monthly time log. This time log must be 
legible, identify with specificity the dates services were performed and specify the nature of 
ESEP’s medical director activity. ESEP shall maintain sufficient back-up information to permit 
District compliance office and/or finance department to audit and validate the information provided 
on the time sheets for a period of no less than four (4) years following the expiration of this 
Agreement. Because either ESEP or District may be called upon to provide a detailed summary of 
services performed to either state or federal government authorities, ESEP acknowledges and 
agrees that their failure to provide the monthly time logs constitutes a material breach of “Exhibit 
C” of this Agreement by ESEP and hereby authorizes District to withhold payment of medical 
directorship compensation hereunder until ESEP has completed and delivered the applicable time 
log(s) to District, and invoices submitted more than sixty (60) days after the month in which 
services are provided will not be paid, and withholding medical director payment as permitted 
under this Section does not constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

12. ESEP shall serve as liaison to providers, both District and non-District providers in the Eastern 
Sierra region.  

Page 18 of 109



13 of 13 
 

13. ESEP shall promote collaboration between internal and external health care teams in the Eastern 
Sierra region. 

14. Collaborates with clinical and administrative directors in developing an operating budget and a 
capital budget on an annual basis for the emergency and hospitalist departments.  

15. Participate in activities and committees as required by the bylaws of the Medical Staff; participate 
in the quality assessment and performance improvement activities of District as well as meet the 
requirements of state of federal mandate; serve as the physician lead for purposes of administrative 
oversight of the operating rooms and Physician Services. 

 

 

 

____________________________   _________________________________ 

Kelli Davis, MBA         John Adam Hawkins, DO 
District           ESEP 
 
 
 

 

Page 19 of 109



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR ACTION 
 

Date:  December 30, 2021 
 
Title:  NONDESIGNATED PUBLIC HOSPITAL BRIDGE LOAN APPLICATION 
 
 
Synopsis: Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Loan and Security Agreement and 

Promissory Note. 
 
 It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the resolution of the 

authorization to execute the loan of $497,000.00 from California Health Facilities 
Financing Authority to fund the working capital of Northern Inyo Healthcare 
District and appointing Kelli Davis, Chief Executive Officer, as the Authorized 
Officer to execute and deliver any and all documents that are necessary for the 
completion of the loan process. 

 
 
 

Prepared by: Dolores Perez, Assistant Controller 
 
 
     Approved by: Vinay Behl, Interim Chief Financial Officer  
 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FOR EXECUTIVE TEAM USE ONLY: 
 
Date of Executive Team Approval: ___________ Submitted by: __________________________________ 
                                                                                                                     Chief Officer 
 

 

Page 20 of 109



1 

RESOLUTION NO 22-01 
 

RESOLUTION OF NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT, 

PROMISSORY NOTE, AND CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH FOR 
THE CALIFORNIA HEALTH FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY  
NONDESIGNATED PUBLIC HOSPITAL BRIDGE LOAN PROGRAM 

 
Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan Program 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Northern Inyo Healthcare District (the “Borrower”) is a nondesignated 
public hospital as defined in Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14165.55, subdivision (l), 
excluding those affiliated with county health systems pursuant to Chapter 240, Statutes of 2021 
(SB 170), Section 25; and  
 

WHEREAS, Borrower has determined that it is in its best interest to borrow an 
aggregate amount not to exceed $497,00.00 from the California Health Facilities Financing 
Authority (the “Lender”), such loan to be funded with the proceeds of the Lender's 
Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Borrower intends to use the funds solely to fund its working capital 
needs to support its operations; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Borrower 
as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The Board of Directors of Borrower hereby ratifies the submission of the 
application for a loan from the Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan Program. 
 

Section 2. KELLI DAVIS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (an “Authorized 
Officer”) is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Borrower, to do any and 
all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents that the Authorized Officer(s) 
deem(s) necessary or advisable in order to consummate the borrowing of moneys from the 
Lender and otherwise to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution and the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 
 
 Section 3.  The proposed form of Loan and Security Agreement (the “Agreement”), 
which contains the terms of the loan is hereby approved.  The loan shall be in a principal 
amount not to exceed $497,000.00, shall not bear interest, and shall mature 24 months from 
the date of the executed Loan and Security Agreement between the Borrower and the Lender.  
The Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Borrower, 
to execute the Agreement in substantially said form that includes the redirection of up to 20% 
of  Medi-Cal reimbursements (checkwrite payments) to Lender in the event of default, with 
such changes therein as the Authorized Officer may require or approve, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 

Page 21 of 109



2 

 
 Section 4.  The proposed form of Promissory Note (the “Note”) as evidence of the 
Borrower's obligation to repay the loan is hereby approved. The Authorized Officer is  hereby 
authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Borrower, to execute the Note in substantially 
said form, with such changes therein as the Authorized Officer may require or approve, such 
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Adoption: 01/19/2022 
 

Page 22 of 109



 

 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE 

 I, Topah Spoonhunter , Secretary of NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT, hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution 
duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of NORTHERN INYO 
HEALTHCARE DISTRICT duly and regularly held at the regular meeting place thereof 
on the 19th day of   January , 2022 , of which meeting all of the members of said Board of 
Directors had due notice and at which the required quorum was present and voting and the 
required majority approved said resolution by the following vote at said meeting: 

 Ayes: 

 Noes: 

 Absent: 

 I further certify that I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes 
of said meeting on file and of record in my office; that said resolution is a full, true and 
correct copy of the original resolution adopted at said meeting and entered in said minutes; 
and that said resolution has not been amended, modified or rescinded since the date of its 
adoption, and is now in full force and effect. 

  
 Topah Spoonhunter, Secretary 

Board of Directors 

 Date:  
 
 
 

Page 23 of 109



 

1 
Charge Capture Policy and Procedure 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: Charge Capture Policy and Procedure 
Owner: Director of Revenue Cycle Department: Business Office 
Scope:  District Wide 
Date Last Modified: 11/03/2021 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 2 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date: 02/20/2019 
 
PURPOSE: To ensure that each service department accurately, completely and in a timely 
manner, records patient service revenue. 
 
POLICY:  

Charges for services provided to patients will be recorded in the appropriate patient visit upon the 
delivery of care for all system generated charges. Manual charges will be placed within seventy-
two (72) hours of the provision of care. 
 

Each service department providing patients with chargeable services and supplies is solely 
responsible for the timely and accurate posting of their charges to the appropriate patient visit. 
Each service department is also responsible for the daily reconciliation of all charges to ensure 
accurate and complete posting of charges into the organization’s financial system. 

 
DEFINITIONS: 
1. Charge Description Master (CDM): A list detailing the official rate charged by a hospital for 
individual procedures, services and supplies. 
 
2. Current Procedural Terminology (CPT): These are medical code sets that are used to report 
medical, surgical and diagnostic procedures and services to entities such as physicians, health 
insurance companies and accreditation organizations. 
 
3. Modifier(s): A modifier indicates that a service or procedure has been altered by some specific 
circumstance, but not changed in its definition or code. Modifiers are used to add information or 
to change the description of a service in order to improve specificity. 
 
4. Service department: Any department within the hospital that provides a service for which a 
charge can be generated. 
 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Charge Identification and Recording 
1.  The development of procedures to address the charge capture processes shall be service 
area specific. The procedures need not be the same for different services within a single 
department (i.e., X-ray, MRI, CT). 

Page 24 of 109



 

2 
Charge Capture Policy and Procedure 

2. Each service department will have designated staff positions assigned the responsibility 
to provide system inherent charge capture entry and review. Assignments will be 
developed to provide coverage of this responsibility on a daily basis. There will be a 
minimum of two staff members trained in the charge capture activities so that back-up 
can be provided at all times. 

3. Utilizing the appropriate charge description master (CDM) codes, the caregiver shall 
accurately document all chargeable services and supplies at the time of service in an 
appropriate manner and format as designated by each service department’s policies and 
procedures. 

4. If charges are generated and entered via documentation of those services, the service 
department will record all documented charges the appropriate patient visit within 
twenty-four (24) hours of the provision of the service. 

5. All manual charges will be placed on the patient’s visit within seventy-two (72) hours of 
the date the service(s) was rendered by the department providing the service. 
 

2. Charge Audit and Control 
1. Each service department will be responsible for the daily reconciliation of charge 
capture, charge entry, charge interface processes, system inherent charge review and for 
the appropriate resolution of identified errors and omissions by midnight of the 
following day. 
2. Each service department is responsible for documenting and implementing an audit 
process to ensure all chargeable services are accurately documented at the time of 
service. 
3. The documented services and supplies will be compared to the daily department census 
(revenue and usage report), schedules and/or interface service reports within twenty-four 
(24) hours of the original posting date. 
4. All errors or omissions will be corrected on the patient’s visit in the system on the day 
the error or omission is discovered. 
 

3. Interface 
1. Each service department is responsible for implementing an audit process to ensure 
accurate transmittal of system-recorded charges from each subsystem to the financial 
system. 
2. Each service department is responsible for having or developing an interface related 
error report listing all transmittal failures. 
3. Each service department is responsible for reviewing the error report and correcting the 
error within twenty-four (24) hours of the report. 
4. If issues with the report or the correction of the errors occur, the service department 
should contact the Charge Capture Department for assistance. 
 

4. Documentation 
1. Each service department shall prepare individual detailed service area specific charge 
procedures including the following sections: 

1. Charge capture process 
2. Charge capture reconciliation process 
3. Charge capture auditing procedure 
4. Charge entry auditing procedures 
5. Charge interface procedures 
6. Audit documentation procedures 

Page 25 of 109



 

3 
Charge Capture Policy and Procedure 

2. Copies of these procedures will be provided to members of the Executive Team and the Charge 
Capture Manager. 
3. The Charge Capture Manager will ensure internal audit review of these procedures on a 
random basis. 
 

5. Late Charges 
1. Any charges processed more than four (4) days from the date of service delivery to a 
patient, will be considered a “Late Charge”. Exceptions to this are charges for services 
requiring: 

1. Creation of a charge for a new service 
2. Tests requiring a result before the service is charged 
3. Tests requiring a signed medical report before the service is charged 

2. Late charges are followed as an “Exception” event in the Charge Capture process and 
are audited for circumstances or processes necessitating corrective action. 
3. It will be necessary to submit late charges to the Charge Capture Department for 
processing. The Charge Edit Form is attached to this policy. 
4. Extraordinary circumstances resulting in a late charge(s) must be submitted to the 
Business Office Manager with an explanation of the circumstances on a case-by-case 
basis so resources and affected areas can be informed as necessary. 
5. Charges for send out services (outside labs) are to be charged at the time of the 
specimen send out, not as of the result. 
 

6. Charging for Opened and Unopened Supplies 
1. Service departments are responsible for patient chargeable supplies issued/used by the 
department, even when the revenue for the supply is credited to a common revenue 
department (Supplies Charged to Patients). 
2. Patients should not be charged for supplies ordered by the physician or surgeons that 
were not used during the procedure. These items are to be included in administrative 
costs of the service department. 
3. If the procedure is discontinued due to a medical complication and after the patient is 
given anesthesia, the provider may be reimbursed by Medicare and the payors for the 
collective cost of the initially planned procedure; however, a separate bill of unused 
items for the initial procedure will not be accepted. In this instance the modifier 
seventy-four (74) applies and will be attached at the claim level. (Reference #7, vi. 
Below detailing the use of modifier seventy-four (74)). 
4. When unused, supplies determined to be inappropriate in size and do not end up fitting, 
are not reusable (i.e., screws or implants). They can be billed to CMS and commercial 
payers in the following instances: 

1. The items have come into contact with the patient and are subsequently 
removed, or if they are unsuccessfully inserted. 
2. Staff must thoroughly document all opened and unused items during each 
procedure, including the reason for nonuse, and attach documentation to the 
claims. 
3. Such supplies and implants are to be offered to the patient. 
 

7. Charging for Discontinued Service or Patient Left Without Being Treated 
1. If a patient arrives and is registered into the system, documentation must be recorded as 
to the reason why the patient did not receive the service, or the reason the service was 
not completed if it began. 

Page 26 of 109



 

4 
Charge Capture Policy and Procedure 

1. If the diagnostic service is discontinued because the patient could not tolerate 
the procedure, charge for the service and a modifier fifty-two (52) will be 
attached at the claim level. 
2. If the service is discontinued due to equipment failure, do not charge. Place the 
applicable department “zero charge” indicative of the reason for the zero charge. 
3. If the service is discontinued because the physician or provider could not 
proceed for reasons related to patient well-being, charge for the service and a 
modifier fifty-three (53) will be attached at the claim level. 
4. If the patient was welcomed and placed in an exam room, vitals were taken and 
the patient left without seeing the provider, do not charge. Place the applicable 
department “zero charge”, indicative of the reason for the zero charge. 
5. If a surgery or diagnostic procedure is cancelled after the patient has been made 
ready and taken to the room where the procedure is to be performed but has not 
received anesthesia, the provider can cancel or discontinue the procedure. If 
none of the planned procedure(s) is completed, the first/only procedure is 
charged with the usual CPT code and a modifier seventy-three (73) will be 
attached at the claim level. The other procedures are not charged. 
6. If a surgery or diagnostic procedure is cancelled due to extenuating 
circumstances or those that threaten the well-being of a patient, and after the 
administration of anesthesia or after the procedure has started, the procedure is 
charged using the usual CPT code and a modifier seventy-four (74) will be 
attached at the claim level. 

2. For any circumstances surrounding a question of to charge or not, contact the Charge 
Capture Manager or the Business Office Manager. 

 
 
REFERENCES: 
1. Healthcare Business Insights 
2. Healthcare Financial Management Association 
3. CMS Coding and Billing Manuals 
 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 
 
CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 
 
Supersedes: v.1 Charge Capture Policy and Procedure 

 

Page 27 of 109



Page 28 of 109



Page 29 of 109



Bo NasmythLoy, MD

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
��������������������������������

Dr. Loy grew up on a ranch in Ojai, Calif. He completed his 
undergraduate studies at the University of Southern California 
(USC) majoring in Biomedical Engineering with a minor in 
Philosophy and graduated magna cum laude. 

Dr. Loy also obtained his medical degree from USC, graduating 
with highest distinction. After medical school he completed his 
orthopedic surgery residency at Beaumont Hospital in Royal 
Oak, Michigan, a level-one trauma center specializing in complex 
fracture care and cutting-edge arthroscopic surgeries.

He completed his fellowship at the Taos Orthopedic 
Institute in Taos, New Mexico where he focused on 
arthroscopic surgeries of the knee and shoulder. While 
at Taos he served as the team physician for the US Ski 
and Snowboard teams.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jBBTz2XQPNw
WATCH HERE:

Page 30 of 109



 
 

TO:  NIHD Board of Directors 
FROM:  Sierra Bourne, MD, Chief of Medical Staff 
DATE:  January 4, 2022 
RE:  Medical Executive Committee Report 
 
The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the Committee 
agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors: 

 
A. Radiology Privilege Form (action item) 

 
B. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (information item) 

 
 
 

 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California 93514 

          Medical Staff Office 
    (760) 873-2174     voice 
     (760) 873-2130     fax 
      

Page 31 of 109



Radiology
Delineation of Privileges

Applicant's Name: ,

Instructions:     
 

1. Click the Request checkbox at the top of a group to request all privileges in that group.    
2. Uncheck any privileges you do not want to request in that group.
3. Sign form electronically and submit with any required documentation.

 

Facilities
 NIHD

Required Qualifications
Education/Training Completion of an ACGME or AOA accredited Residency training program in Diagnostic

Radiology.
OR Completion of an ACGME accredited residency in Interventional Radiology (integrated
program).

Certification Current certification or active participation in the examination process leading to certification
in Diagnostic Radiology by the American Board of Radiology or AOA equivalent.

Clinical Experience
(Initial)

Applicant must provide documentation of provision of diagnostic radiology services
representative of the scope and complexity of the privileges requested during the previous 24
months (waived for applicants who completed training during the previous year).

Clinical Experience
(Reappointment)

Applicant must provide documentation of provision of clinical services representative of the
scope and complexity of privileges requested during the previous 24 months.

Additional
Qualifications

Current California Fluoroscopy Permit issued by the Radiologic Health Branch.
AND Applicant must have a contract with the organization to provide services in this
specialty.

 
Core Privileges in Radiology

Description: Diagnosis of disease/conditions utilizing medical imaging techniques, including X-Rays, Computer
Tomography (CT), Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI), and Ultrasound.

 

R
eq

u
est

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

 

Select, perform and interpret

✓

Dr. Provider Test, MD

Published: 12/29/2021 Radiology Page 1 of 5

Page 32 of 109



FPPE (Department Chief to select)

Perform history and physical examination

Routine imaging, including bone density scans, fluoroscopy, IVP (intravenous pyelography), x-rays

Diagnostic ultrasound

Diagnostic CT (computed-tomography) or CTA (computed-tomography angiography)

MRI (magnetic resonance imaging) or MRA (magnetic resonance imaging angiography)

Diagnostic nuclear medicine studies

Procedures

Image guided procedures such as contrast studies of the gastrointestinal and genitourinary systems;
arthrography; lumbar puncture; and myelography.

Image guided procedures including percutaneous tube placement; fluid and cyst aspiration; and other
procedures requiring the same techniques and skills.

Image guided biopsy and drainage (excludes breast biopsies)

Nerve block, facet injections, and epidurals

Peripheral insertion of central venous catheter (PICC) placement

Paracentesis

Thoracostomy tube placement/Thoracentesis

15 overreads in each of the major radiology modalities (i.e., CT, MRI, Ultrasound, etc.) in which the practitioner
has been granted privileges
Feedback from involved clinician or administrative person who is knowledgeable about the services performed by
the physician
Reference from a referring physician (related to whether consultation was timely, appropriate and complete).

 
Privilege Cluster: Breast Imaging and Invasive Privileges

Description: Select, perform and interpret imaging and invasive procedures related to the detection and treatment
of cancer of the breast.

Dr. Provider Test, MD

Published: 12/29/2021 Radiology Page 2 of 5

Page 33 of 109



Qualifications
 

Education/Training Completion of a residency or fellowship program in radiology approved by the ACGME that
included breast imaging and invasive procedures.
AND For initial qualification, confirmation from program director that applicant is trained
and qualified to perform breast imaging and invasive procedures per Mammography
Quality Standards Act (MQSA) standards.

Certification Current certification or active participation in the examination process leading to
certification in Diagnostic Radiology by the American Board of Radiology.
OR Current certification or active participation in the examination process leading to
certification in Interventional Radiology and Diagnostic Radiology (integrated certificate)
by the American Board of Radiology.

Clinical Experience
(Initial)

Applicant must provide documentation demonstrating at least 960 mammographic
examinations interpreted within the past 24 months.
OR Completion of training specified for this privilege cluster during the previous 12
months (see Education/Training above) with letter from training program documenting
240 mammography interpretations under supervision for a 6-month period.

Clinical Experience
(Reappointment)

Applicant must provide documentation of provision of clinical services representative of
the scope and complexity of privileges requested during the previous 24 months.
AND Meet the numeric requirements for mammography interpretations per MQSA
standards (960 in the past 24 months).

Continuing
Education

For initial applicants, a minimum of 60 hours of documented category 1 medical education
in mammography. At least 15 of the category 1 hours shall have been acquired within the
past 36 months. Hours spent in residency specifically devoted to mammography will be
considered as equivalent to category I continuing medical education credits and will be
accepted if documented in writing by the appropriate representative of the training
institution.
OR For privilege renewals, a minimum of 15 hours of category 1 medical education in
mammography in the past 36 months

Additional
Qualifications

For initial qualification, proof of 8 hours of training in digital mammography and 8 hours
of training in digital breast tomosynthesis
AND Applicants must meet and maintain qualifications in conformance with the
Mammography Quality Standards Act (MQSA) regulations in order to be granted privileges
in mammography.
AND Applicant must have a contract with the organization to provide services in this
specialty.

R
eq

u
est

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

 

Select, perform and interpret

Mammography, screening and diagnostic

Ultrasound-guided breast biopsy

Stereotactic breast biopsy

Needle/wire localization

Dr. Provider Test, MD

Published: 12/29/2021 Radiology Page 3 of 5

Page 34 of 109



FPPE (Department Chief to select)

Qualifications

FPPE (Department Chief to select)

Acknowledgment of Applicant

15 overreads of each modality for which privileges have been granted
Feedback from involved clinician or administrative person who is knowledgeable about the services performed by
the physician
Reference from a referring physician (related to whether consultation was timely, appropriate and complete).

 
Moderate (Procedural) Sedation

Description: Moderate Sedation/Analgesia ("Conscious Sedation") is a drug-induced depression of consciousness
during which the patient responds purposefully to verbal commands, either alone or with light tactile stimulation. No
interventions are required to maintain a patent airway and spontaneous ventilation is adequate. Cardiovascular
function is usually maintained.

 

Clinical
Experience
(Initial)

Applicant must provide documentation of a minimum of 6 sedations during the previous 24
months.
AND Applicant must complete sedation tutorial at initial granting of privileges and every 2
years thereafter.

Clinical
Experience
(Reappointment)

Documentation of at least 6 cases within the last 24 months.
AND Sedation tutorial completed within the last 24 months.

Additional
Qualifications

Current ACLS certification (waived for physicians with Emergency Medicine Board
certification).

R
eq

u
est

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

 

Moderate Sedation (Must perform 6 every 2 Years)

Retrospective review of 3 cases of administration of moderate sedation
Feedback from involved clinical or administrative personnel

NIHDPractitioner's Signature

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience, and demonstrated 
competency I believe that I am competent to perform and that I wish to exercise at Northern Inyo Healthcare District and I 
understand that:   
 
A.  In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by applicable Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 
applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation.   
 
B.  Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are 
governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
                

Dr. Provider Test, MD

Published: 12/29/2021 Radiology Page 4 of 5

Page 35 of 109



Department Chief Recommendation - Privileges
I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and my recommendation is based
upon the review of supporting documentation and/or my personal knowledge regarding the applicant's performance
of the privileges requested:
Privilege Condition/Modification/Deletion/Explanation
 
 

t

Dr. Provider Test, MD

Published: 12/29/2021 Radiology Page 5 of 5

Page 36 of 109



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTHERN 
INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT MAKING THE LEGALLY REQUIRED 
FINDINGS TO CONTINUE TO AUTHORIZE THE CONDUCT OF REMOTE 
“TELEPHONIC” MEETINGS DURING THE STATE OF EMERGENCY 

 
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, pursuant to California Gov. Code Section 8625, the Governor 
declared a state of emergency stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic (“Emergency”); and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 17, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361, which bill went into 
immediate effect as urgency legislation; and 
 
WHEREAS, AB 361 added subsection (e) to Government Code Section 54953 to authorize 
legislative bodies to conduct remote meetings provided the legislative body makes specified 
findings; and 
 
WHEREAS, as of September 19, 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic has killed more than 67,612 
Californians; and 
 
WHEREAS, social distancing measures decrease the chance of spread of COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, this legislative body previously adopted a resolution to authorize this legislative body 
to conduct remote “telephonic” meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code 54953(e)(3) authorizes this legislative body to continue to conduct 
remote “telephonic” meetings provided that it has timely made the findings specified therein.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Northern Inyo Healthcare 
District as follows: 
 

1. This legislative body declares that it has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of 
emergency declared by the Governor and at least one of the following is true: (a) the state 
of emergency, continues to directly impact the ability of the members of this legislative 
body to meet safely in person; and/or (2) state or local officials continue to impose or 
recommend measures to promote social distancing.  

Page 37 of 109



 
 
 

 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of January, 2022 by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
 
   
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Jody Veenker, Chair 

Board of Directors 
 

 
ATTEST:      
 
________________________________ 
Name: __________________________      
Title:   __________________________  
 

 

Page 38 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 1 of 7 
      
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Robert Sharp, District 
Board Chair. 

 
PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REQUEST TO ADD TO 
THE AGENDA, CLOSED 
SESSION ITEM  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Robert Sharp, Chair 
Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary  
Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 
Jean Turner, Member-at-Large 
Kelli Davis MBA, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  
    Officer 
Vinay Behl, Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Joy Engblade MD, Chief Medical Officer   
Allison Partridge RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer 
Sierra Bourne MD, Chief of Staff  
Keith Collins, General Legal Counsel (Jones & Mayer) 
 
Mr. Sharp announced that the purpose of public comment is to allow 
members of the public to address the Board of Directors.  Public 
comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 
limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty 
(30) minutes being allowed for all public comment unless otherwise 
modified by the Chair.  Speaking time may not be granted and/or loaned 
to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time 
unless arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of 
speakers to have a spokesperson speak on their behalf.  Comments must 
be kept brief and non-repetitive.  The general Public Comment portion of 
the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction 
of the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda.  Public 
comments on agenda items should be made at the time each item is 
considered. Public comments were heard from Heather Edwall.  
 
 Legal Counsel, Keith Collins requested that the Board of Directors 
consider adding one item to the agenda for this meeting, due to the fact 
that an immediate need to discuss potential actions exists and because this 
item came to the attention of District Administration following posting of 
the agenda for this meeting. The request is to place this item on the 
Closed Session portion of the agenda for this meeting as item 11B and 
amend the item as follows: 
 

- Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to 
Gov. Code 54956.9(d)(1)). two cases:  
Cassidy v. NIHD & NIHD v. SMHD  
 

It was moved by Jean Turner, seconded by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve the addition of this agenda item as 
requested.  

Page 39 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 2 of 7 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
APPROVAL OF THE 
AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO 
THE NORTHERN INYO 
COUNTY LOCAL 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
RETIREMENT PLAN  
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE 
FREEZE AMENDMENT 
VALIC 457 PLAN  
 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE 
FREEZE AMENDMENT 
LINCOLN 457 PLAN  
 
 
 
 
NORTHERN INYO 
HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT 2021 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
AUDIT REPORT AND 
DOCUMENT 
PRESENTATION  
 
APPROVAL OF 
REVENUE BOND 
AGREEMENTS 
BETWEEN QUINT & 
THIMMING, LLP AND 
NORTHERN INYO 
HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT FOR 
REFUNDING REVENUE 
BONDS, SERIES 2021A 
& TAXABLE REFUND 
REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2021B; AND 
APPROVAL OF 
DISTRICT BOARD 

 
 
 
Isabel Safie with Best Best & Krieger Law, called attention to the 
proposed Amendment No.5 to the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital 
District Retirement Plan.  
 
It was moved by Jody Veenker, seconded by Topah Spoonhunter, and 
unanimously passed to approve the Amendment NO. 5 to the Northern 
Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan as presented. 
 
Isabel Safie with Best Best & Krieger Law, called attention to the 
proposed Freeze Amendment Valic 457 Plan.   
 
It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and 
unanimously passed to approve the Freeze Amendment Valic 457 Plan as 
presented. 
 
Isabel Safie with BBK Law called attention to the proposed Freeze 
Amendment Lincoln 457 Plan.  
 
It was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 
unanimously passed to approve the Freeze Amendment Lincoln 457 Plan 
as presented. 
 
 
Chief Executive Officer, Kelli Davis introduced David Showalter with 
Edie Bailly. Mr. Showalter provided a presentation of the Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District 2021 Annual Financial Audit Report. No action was 
taken.  
 
 
 
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Vinay Behl, and Todd Van Deventure 
with Piper Sandler called attention to the proposed Agreement between 
Quint & Thimming, LLP and Northern Inyo Healthcare District for 
Revenue Bond, Series 2021A & 2021B and clarified questions. Brian 
Quint with Quint & Thimming, LLP, also called attention to proposed 
District Board Resolution 21-14. NIHD Compliance Officer, Patty 
Dickson noted that the District Board Resolution appears on the meeting 
agenda as District Board Resolution 12-14, instead of District Board 
Resolution 21-14. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously 
passed to approve the Agreements between Quint & Thimming, LLP and 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District for Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2021A & Taxable Refund Revenue Bonds 2021B; and Approval of 
District Board Resolution 21-14 with the correction as requested by Ms. 

Page 40 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 3 of 7 
RESOLUTION 21-14 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVAL, 
PROCESSING RETURN 
MAIL  
 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVAL, 
PROCESSING UNITED 
STATES POSTAL 
SERVICE MAIL  
 
 
ELECTION OF BOARD 
OFFICERS FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
TO APPOINT A BOARD 
MEMBER TO THE 
COMPLIANCE 
BUSINESS ETHICS 
COMMITTEE  
 
 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dickson.  
 
NIHD Admission Services Manager, Tanya Deleo called attention to the 
revised NIHD Policy and Procedure titled: Processing Return Mail. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and 
unanimously passed to approve the revised NIHD Policy and Procedure 
title: Processing Return Mail Policy and Procedure as presented.  
 
Admission Services Manager, Tanya Deleo called attention to the revised 
NIHD Policy and Procedure titled; Processing United States Postal 
Service Mail.  
 
It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 
unanimously passed to approve the revised NIHD Policy and Procedure 
titled: Processing United States Postal Services Mail policy as presented. 
 
Mr. Sharp called attention to the appointment of District Board Officers 
for the 2022 calendar year, and proposed the following slate of officers:  

- Chair: Jody Veenker 
- Vice Chair: Mary Mae Kilpatrick  
- Secretary: Topah Spoonhunter 
- Treasurer: Jean Turner 
- Member at Large: Robert Sharp  

 
It was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 
unanimously passed to approve the slate of officers for the 2022 calendar 
year as presented. 
 
Ms. Davis requested that this open session item be tabled and discussed at 
the next Regular Board Meeting. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously 
passed to table open session item 3I. Recommendation to Appoint a Board 
Member to the Compliance Business Ethics Committee as requested by 
Ms. Davis.  
 
 
 
 
Chief of Staff Sierra Bourne, MD reported following review and 
consideration the Medical Executive Committee recommends  
approval of the following Medical Staff Appointments: 
 

1.  Jane Yoon, MD (pediatrics) – Active Staff 
2. Milan Shah, MD (urology) – Courtesy Staff 
3. George Chiang, MD (urology) – Courtesy Staff 
4. Bridget Miranda, NP (urology nurse practitioner) – Advanced 

Page 41 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 4 of 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REQUEST FOR 
ADDITONAL 
PRIVILEDGES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
RESIGNATIONS  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMBERS NOT 
SUBMITTING A 
REAPPOINTMENT 
APPLICATION  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Practice Provider Staff 
5. Bradley Nelson, MD (cardiology) – Telemedicine Staff (Renown) 
6. Troy Wiedenbeck, MD (cardiology) – Telemedicine Staff (Renown) 

 
It was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve all six (6) Medical Staff Appointments as 
requested.  
 
Doctor Bourne also reported the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends approval of the following request for Additional Privileges: 
 

1. Gary Turner, MD (radiology) – request for PICC line insertion 
privileges. 

 
It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously 
passed to approve the one (1) request for Additional Privileges as 
requested. 
 
Doctor Bourne also reported, following review consideration and 
approval by the appropriate Committees, the Medical Executive 
Committee recommends approval of the following Medical Staff 
Resignations: 
 

1. Anu Agarwal, MD (telecardiology, Renown) – 8/9/2021 
2. David Nicholson, CRNA (nurse anesthesia) – 9/30/2021 
3. Richard Seher, MD (telecardiology, Renown) – 8/4/2021 
4. Sarah Zuger, MD (family medicine) – 12/31/2021 

 
It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 
unanimously passed to approve all four (4) Medical Staff Resignations as 
requested.  
 
Doctor Bourne, provided an update on the following members that will 
not be submitting reappointment application, with privileges expiring 
12/31/2021:  
 

1. Daniel Davis, MD (orthopedics) 
2. Kevin Deitel, MD (orthopedics) 
3. Elizabeth Maslow, MD (infectious disease) 
4. Wilbur Peralta, MD (internal medicine/hospitalist) 
5. Louis Rivera, MD (general surgery) 
6. Richard Seher, MD (telecardiology, Renown) 
7. Sheila Lezcano, MD (rheumatology) 
8. Shabnamzehra Bhojani, MD (psychiatry)  
9. Rajesh Vaid, MD (teleradiogy) 

 
 
 

Page 42 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 5 of 7 
POLICIES AND 
PRCEDURES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BIENNIAL REVIEW OF 
RADIATION SAFETY 
POLICIES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
 
 
 
 

Doctor Bourne, additionally reported the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends approval of the following District Wide Policies and 
Procedures:  
 

1. Emergency Department Telephone Advice Information 
2. Blood Alcohol Levels; Law Enforcement - Requested Collection 
3. Medical Staff Department Policy – Anesthesia 
4. Medical Staff Department Policy – Surgery 
5. Non-Physician First Assistant in the Operating Room 
6. Standardized Procedure – General Policy for the Nurse 

Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife 
7. Standardized Protocol – General Policy for the Physician 

Assistant 
8. Diagnostic Imaging – Radioactive Material Hot Lab Security 

 
It was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve all eight (8) Policies and Procedures as 
presented.  
  
Doctor Bourne reported, following review and consideration, the Medical 
Executive Committee recommends approval of the following Biennial 
Review of Radiation Safety Policies:  
 

1. ALARA Program 
2. Diagnostic Imaging – Ordering Radioactive Materials 
3. Diagnostic Imaging – Handling of Radioactive Packages, Non-

Nuclear Medicine Personnel 
4. Dosimetry Program – Occupational Radiation Exposure 

Monitoring Program 
5. Radiology Services Pregnant Personnel 
6. DI CT Radiation Safety Policy 
7. Diagnostic Imaging – Imaging Equipment Quality Control 
8. Diagnostic Imaging – Patient Priority 
9. DI - Venipuncture by Radiologic Technologists 
10. DI – CT Contrast Administration 
11. Sonography Ergonomics Policy 
 

It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 
unanimously passed to approve all eleven (11) Biennial Review of 
Radiation Safety Polices as presented.  
  
Doctor Bourne provided a report on the Medical Executive Committee 
meeting and clarified questions.  
_______________________________________________________. 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 6 of 7 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS ON ITEMS OF 
INTEREST 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS  
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Sharp called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting which 
contained the following items: 
 

1. Approval of District Board Resolution 21-13, to continue to allow 
Board meetings to be held virtually. 

2.  Approval of minutes of the November 17, 2021 Regular Board 
Meeting  

3. Financial and Statistical reports as of October 31, 2021  
4. Approval of Policies and Procedures:  

A. Advance Beneficiary Notice- Non-Clinical Policy and 
Procedure 

B. Medicare Outpatient Observation Notice- Non-Clinical Policy 
and Procedure 

C. NIHD Code of Business Ethics and Conduct- Non-Clinical 
Policy 

D. Language Access Services Policy- Non-Clinical Policy 
E. Language Access Services Program- Non-Clinical Policy 

 
It was moved by Mr. Spoonhunter, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and 
unanimously passed to approve all four (4) Consent Agenda items as 
presented.   
 
Mr. Sharp additionally asked if any members of the Board of Directors 
wished to report on any items of interest. No reports were provided.   
 
 
Mr. Sharp announced that at this time persons in the audience may speak 
only on items listed on the closed session portion of this meeting. No 
public comments were heard.  
 
At 7:22 pm Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 
Session for  

A. Conference with legal counsel, anticipated litigation. Significant 
exposure to litigation (pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) 
of Government Code Section 54956.9) two cases.  

B. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to 
Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) two cases. 
Cassidy v. NIHD & NIHD v. SMHD 

 
Mr. Sharp additionally noted that it was not anticipated that an action 
would be reported out following the conclusion of Closed Session.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                December 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting                       Page 7 of 7 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ANY ACTION 
TAKEN 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

 
At 9:34 pm, the meeting returned to Open Session. Mr. Sharp reported 
that the Board took no reportable action.  
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:35 pm. 
 

  

_____________________________ 
Robert Sharp, Chair 
 
 
 

         Attest: _________________________________ 
                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 45 of 109



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                 December 29, 2021 
Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1  
      
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:03 pm by Robert Sharp, District 
Board Chair. 

 
PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE 
NORTHERN INYO 
HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT OPERATING 
ROOM FLOORING 
REPLACEMENT 
BUDGET 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Robert Sharp, Chair   
Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 
Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 
Jean Turner, Member-At-Large 
Kelli Davis, Chief Executive Officer 
Vinay Behl, Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Joy Engblade, Chief Medical Officer 
Allison Partridge, Chief Nursing Officer 
 
Mr. Sharp reported at this time, members of the audience may speak only 
on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be limited 
to a maximum of three minutes each.  The Board is prohibited from 
generally discussing or taking action on items not included on the Notice 
for this meeting.  No comments were heard. 
 
Chief Executive Officer, Kelli Davis introduced NIHD Director of 
Facilities, Scott Hooker, who called attention to the approval of proposed 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District Operating Room Flooring Replacement 
Budget. Mr. Hooker, provided an overview and clarified questions for the 
Board  
 
It was moved by Jody Veenker, seconded by Jean Turner, and 
unanimously passed to approve the Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
Operating Room Flooring Replacement Budget as requested.  
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm. 
 

  

  
  

_________________________________ 
Robert Sharp, Chair 

 
 

         Attest: _________________________________ 
                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 46 of 109



Page 47 of 109



Page 48 of 109



Page 49 of 109



Page 50 of 109



Page 51 of 109



Page 52 of 109



Page 53 of 109



Page 54 of 109



Page 55 of 109



Page 56 of 109



Page 57 of 109



Page 58 of 109



Page 59 of 109



Page 60 of 109



Page 61 of 109



Page 62 of 109



Page 63 of 109



Page 64 of 109



Page 65 of 109



Page 66 of 109



Page 67 of 109



Page 68 of 109



Page 69 of 109



Page 70 of 109



Page 71 of 109



Page 72 of 109



Page 73 of 109



Page 74 of 109



Page 75 of 109



Page 76 of 109



Page 77 of 109



Page 78 of 109



Page 79 of 109



Page 80 of 109



Page 81 of 109



Page 82 of 109



Page 83 of 109



Page 84 of 109



Page 85 of 109



Page 86 of 109



Page 87 of 109



Page 88 of 109



Page 89 of 109



Page 90 of 109



 

 
Improving our communities, one life at a time. 
One Team, One Goal, Your Health!       

 
DATE:         January 2022 
 
TO:              Board of Directors 
                     Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
 
FROM:        CEO Board Report 
                     Lynda Vance, Manager of Project Management   
 
RE:   Department Update  
 

 
REPORT DETAIL 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

Project Management Specialist:  We completed the process with HR for the new Project 
Management Specialist.  I am excited to welcome Brandon Cox to the team.  Brandon comes 
with 20 plus years of experience working on projects centered in construction and 
communications.   
Project Process updates:  With the addition of staff to the Project Management Team, I will 
have time to complete the work on streamlining project processes, tracking, and reporting.   
 

  Projects (this is a summary of the high-level work, not a complete list) 
Discovery – 9 (Mammo and Stereo Equipment Replacement, PACS Replacement, 
Phlebotomy draw area update, DI Coordinator offices, Onboarding Workflow Efficiency, 
BDM Interface Cerner project, OneContent upgrade, Cerner Portal Relaunch, Clearing 
House Mini-Grants) 
 
Actively Working – 21 (OR and PACU Flooring, Employee Health Management 
System Agility, Myla Lab/Micro Middleware, Cerner Support and SR review, 
Hematology Analyzer, HCIQ and Valify GPO CHC Project, Omnicell Cabinets, ADP 
Empower/ Payroll and Employee services, Zoll Defibrillator Replacement, City of Hope 
Telehealth, Report Governance Committee, GHX, MAT Grant Project, Smartsheet 
upgrade for PHI compliance, State Mandate Tracking, Scanning-clinic efficiency, i2i 
with Cerner, Flu and NSHN tracking, Experian Pricing transparency, OneContent athena 
upload, Internal Med Office update) 
 
Closing – 7 (Reference Lab price updates, Advance Capture, i2i with athena, Bronco 
Clinic Restart, Supply requisition Challenges, PPM SaaS, OneContent Centricity upload) 
 

 
 
 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California  93514 
(760) 873-5811 
  

Page 91 of 109



Moves Completed - 3 (Perinatal Manager Office, Employee Health Work Station 
addition, IT apps admin relocation) 
 
On Hold Projects - 11 (InQdocs Subscription Service, Copay Workflow Improvement, 
FEEs system, Hemodialysis for IP, Kitchen Update, Wound Care, Additional Ortho 
Services, Logisticare/Modivcare Transport, Surgery/ PACU office changes, SAP Concur, 
Door Access Badge standard workflow) 

Page 92 of 109



     
 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District                                                                      150 Pioneer Lane 
                                                                                                                                      Bishop, CA  93514 

                                                                                                                               (760) 873-5811 
                                                                                                                                           www.nih.org 

 
Date: 12/28/21 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Joy Engblade, MD, MMM, FACP, Chief Medical Officer 
Re: Bi-Monthly CMO report 

Medical Staff Department update 

Physician recruiting continues to be fairly active.  We are planning for two interview visits; one with an 
urologist who will complete his training by the summer of 2023 and another with a general surgeon 
who will be interviewing with her husband who is an otolaryngologist. We are excited for all interviews.  
We continue to recruit for a family practice physician for the Rural Health Clinic. 

The Medical Staff Department continues to be busy with reappointments and provider enrollment, two 
big areas that are essential for physician credentialing and reimbursement for the District.  The new 
software, CredentialStream is up, with most information populated now, planning to be fully functional 
by March 2022.  This will allow anyone in the District to electronically search for a physician’s privileges 
on the spot. 

We will also be busy hosting medical students and nurse practitioner students this winter, across 
multiple departments.  This is an exciting time for us to share our knowledge and show the students the 
subtle differences in medical care delivery in a rural community. 
 

 

Pharmacy Department update 

We are moving forward with the Pharmacy construction project.  Regular updates are received from 
Scott Hooker and Colombo construction.  The building separation is nearly complete and we will be 
working to start pharmacy construction in early 2022. 

The Pharmacy department continues to support Covid vaccination efforts, as the Covid vaccines moved 
to the Rural Health and Pediatric clinics.  We will also be supporting Covid boosters for employees in 
early January 2022.  The pharmacists continue to be our expert source of information for new Covid 
medications.  We appreciate their knowledge and expertise, especially during this time of quickly 
changing medications and indications. 

 

 

Page 93 of 109



Quality Department update 

The Quality Department continues to report on a number of regulatory requirements, meeting all 
deadlines.  A quarterly dashboard has been created to display this data including Promoting 
Interoperability (PI)- Hospital, Merit-based Incentive Payment System (MIPS)- Clinic, Medicare and Chip 
Reauthorization Act (MACRA)- Anesthesia and The Joint Commission ORYX. 

We have been partnering with a company called i2i, which is assisting with pulling data from Athena and 
Cerner.  We are networking with other hospitals who are also using i2i to leverage the most efficiency 
with this platform.  QIP continues to be a program that we are participating in, through the state.   
We continue to recruit for support positions in our Quality department. 

 

Covid 19 

We continue to have weekly Incident Command meetings and we share information across the District 
and with our community partners.  With Omicron on the rise, we have confirmed that all of our current 
testing (antigen and PCR) are able to detect the variant.  As noted above, we continue to stay up to date 
with CDPH requirements, medication indications for Covid and variants, and vaccination 
recommendations. 

 

Physician Compensation Update 

I continue to work with VMG, our fair market value consultants as well as a small working group 
including Stacey Brown, Stefan Schunk and Lindsey Ricci.  Fair market value is tricky right now, given the 
Covid pandemic and the interpretation of the data.  I asked the physicians for an extension (my hope 
was to get all data out by the end of 2021, but I will need an extra 2 months).  I appreciate everyone’s 
patience. 

 

Page 94 of 109



DATE:                January 2022 
TO: Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Allison Partridge, RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer           
RE:  Department Update  

REPORT DETAIL 
Old Business 
COVID-19 
The District continues to manage the daily challenges that COVID-19 has presented. We continue 
with weekly incident command meetings. We review the District's current state of preparedness 
during incident command and identify any areas or opportunities that require additional review 
and or problem-solving. Our Infection Prevention Team continues to monitor and provide updates 
on both national and local status and recommendations. NIHD continues to partner with Inyo 
County Public Health in the administration of COVID-19 vaccines and is working to create 
accessibility of vaccines in the RHC and NIA clinics.  The District also has processes in place for 
the administration of Monoclonal Antibody Therapy.   

New Business 
Operating Room (OR) Flooring Project 

The OR Flooring Project kicked off Monday January 3rd.  There has been great collaboration on 
this project through a team of key stakeholders throughout the District.  We are very eager to see 
this project through successful completion.  

Defibrillator Project 

The District is currently in the process of replacing our defibrillators throughout the clinical areas.  
This project is led by Jenny Bates, Justin Nott, Scott Stoner, and Lynda Vance.  The new 
defibrillators will bring advanced technology including CPR feedback. Training of the Super-
users has been completed and end-user training will begin in the upcoming weeks.  

Recruitment 

In collaboration with our Human Resource Team we continue to focus on recruitment and 
retention of team members to fill open vacancies throughout the District. 

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
Improving our communities, one life at a time. 

One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

Page 95 of 109



Team Recognition 

• The District celebrated the retirement of Ann Wagner, Perioperative Director on 
December 22nd. 

• Congratulations to Lauren Billings, RHC MA, and Erica Esparza, RHC MA, for 
completing the Cerro Cosa MA program. 

• Congratulations to Kaylyn Rickford RHC MA, who was appointed as a board member to 
the California Certifying Board of Medical Assistants. 

 

The New Year of 2022 is not without challenges. It is with utmost gratitude that we recognize all 
our team members throughout the District who continue to work every day to support our patients 
and community through this pandemic. 

   

Each department leader has submitted a department specific report to follow.  

Page 96 of 109



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:                January 2022 
TO:                     Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Jenny Bates, ED Manager                  
RE:                     Department Update  

 
REPORT DETAIL 

Old Business 
The ED team continues to provide safe and effective care for our local community members and 
visitors to our area. The ED continues to operate under NIHD’s Covid emergency preparedness 
plan while ensuring the highest level of safety.  

 

New Business 
The ED team has recently opted in for the upcoming Beta Quest for Zero: Excellence in the ED, 
which is a patient safety initiative designed to support excellent care in the ED. The overall goal 
of the Quest for Zero is to improve patient safety and high reliability and reduce patient harm.  

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California  93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
  

Improving our communities, one life at a time. 
One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

 

Page 97 of 109



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:                January 2022 
TO:                     Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Justin Nott, Med/Surg and ICU Manager 
RE:                     Department Update  

 
REPORT DETAIL 

Med/Surg and ICU  
Recently, a large focus for med/surg and the ICU has been ensuring that we have appropriate 
staffing. We have currently filled many of the med/surg positions that were previously posted, but 
we will still have travelers covering those positions until the new hires have been fully oriented to 
their new positions. In the ICU, we have 3 open RN positions posted, and we currently have all of 
those positions staffed with travelers.  

The RCU has been open for the majority of the current quarter. The med/surg and ICU staff have 
continued to go above and beyond, frequently floating to the RCU whenever they are needed.  

We continue to move forward with the development of a peripherally inserted central catheter 
(PICC) team. The Nurses receiving the PICC training are currently working on the online portion 
of their training and will begin the in person hands-on portion of their training in January 2022.  

We continue to focus on completing all annual clinical competencies and all annual training on 
safe patient handling equipment. Multiple sessions have been scheduled throughout December to 
ensure that all staff are signed off on their annual training be the end of the year.  

 

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
  

Improving our communities, one life at a time. 
One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

 

Page 98 of 109



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:                January 2022 
TO:                     Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Jannalyn Lawrence, Director of Outpatient Clinics                  
RE:                     Department Update  

 
REPORT DETAIL 

Old Business 
It’s hard to believe I’m reporting yet another rise in COVID, but here we are; we remain endlessly 
proud of and grateful for our frontline workers in the Car Clinic. Just this week we expanded to 
add a second provider and MA team to accommodate increased demand. They have braved the 
rain and snow in recent weeks and remain as committed as ever to the health of our community.  

 

New Business 
We administered the first doses of COVID vaccine in the RHC and NIA Pediatric Clinic on 
Wednesday December 15. We have opened up weekly vaccine clinics in both locations for 
community members to sign up and have been full every week! We also offer the vaccine during 
regularly-scheduled provider visits in both locations.  

I am pleased to share some exciting staff recognition: Lauren Billings and Erica Esparza both 
completed Cerro Coso’s Medical Assistant program with flying colors! They are valuable 
members of the RHC back office team. Kaylyn Rickford, MA, was recently appointed as a board 
member of the CA Certifying Board of Medical Assistants. This is an honorable achievement.  

NIHD, specifically our MAT team, has been identified as one of the CA Bridge Program’s 2021 
Naloxone Distribution MVPs. They were recognized for creating low-barrier access to Naloxone 
and the Bridge Program is impressed with our efforts to saturate the community with this life-
saving medication.   

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
  

Improving our communities, one life at a time. 
One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

 

Page 99 of 109



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:                January 2022 
TO:                     Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Robin Christensen DON Quality/Infection Prevention                  
RE:                     Department Update  

Clinical Informatics, Survey Readiness, Infection Prevention, & Employee 
Health  

 
REPORT DETAIL 

Old Business 
Clinical Informatics: We still have two open positions. The leadership team continues to work 
closely with Amanda Santana, Clinical Informaticist, and other departments to ensure that the 
District's needs are met. Amanda continues to onboard new providers, students, clinical, and 
administrative staff weekly due to off cycle-onboarding. In addition, the team continues to work 
with all departments to help improve workflow efficiency and optimization. 

Survey Readiness: The Quality/Survey readiness team continues tracer activities throughout the 
District. The team continues to experience significant participation from all departments, and the 
teams are taking the tracer activity as learning opportunities. In addition, leadership continues 
presenting information relevant to the regulatory requirements for their department and steps they 
are taking for continuous survey readiness. 

Employee Health: Employee Health continues to encourage staff to get their COVID-19 vaccine 
and booster dose, and 2021-2022 influenza vaccine. The team collaborates with Human 
Resources and RHC to streamline the employee onboarding process. In addition, Employee 
Health continues to simplify the manual process of Employee Health records to help prepare for 
Agility implementation the new Employee Health database. 

Infection Prevention: Continues to work with Inyo County Health Department with COVID-19 
related activities. Infection Prevention works closely with Human Resources to ensure that NIHD 
meets COVID-19 regulatory guidelines relating to employees and patients. In addition, the team 
monitors and provides updates on local, state, and federal guidelines and recommendations. 

 

 

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
  

Improving our communities, one life at a time. 
One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

 

Page 100 of 109



New Business 
Clinical Informatics:  The team continues to open and monitor Cerner Service Desk tickets for 
the NIHD District. The leadership team will be reviewing current open positions and evaluating 
the job descriptions based on the department's needs. Clinical Informatics will also be partnering 
with other key stakeholders on the Cerner portal re-launch.  
 
Survey Readiness: Getting ready to expand a new group of tracer activities to other departments. 
The team closely monitors for any new regulatory changes or updates and distributes the 
information to key stakeholders to help ensure that the District remains complaint. In addition, we 
continue to collect and update the survey readiness binder with the required documents for CDPH 
and The Joint Commission; this will include distributing 2022 National Patient Safety Goals. 

Employee Health: The team will be interviewing for a temporary Employee Health Clerk to 
assist with the implementation of Agility, vaccine data collection, and entry, and assisting with 
onboarding of new employees, providers, students, and volunteers. In December, we had the 
Agility kick-off meeting, and we will be partnering with several other departments throughout the 
District to help with the implementation. In addition, Employee Health plays a vital role in 
onboarding new staff, providers, students, and volunteers; there has been a significant increase in 
onboarding throughout the District.  

NIHD healthcare worker (HCW) influenza vaccine rates for 2021-2022 are 74.2 %. We have 500 
HCW's who received the vaccine, three staff members with unknown status, and 96 HCW’s who 
have declined the vaccine. 

Infection Prevention: Continues to report COVID-19 data to CDPH daily. Infection Prevention 
and Employee Health continue to collect NIHD workforce COVID-19 data to report to CMS via 
the NHSN portal. Infection Prevention continues to monitor and report Hospital Acquired 
Infection data.   

Page 101 of 109



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:                January 2022 
TO:                     Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Julie Tillemans, Perinatal Nurse Manager  
RE:                     Department Update  

 
REPORT DETAIL 

Old Business 
The Perinatal GoMoms Team participated in our first direct virtual simulation training, with a 
topic of Postpartum Hemorrhage Management. Based on the learnings from the drill we are 
working to enhance our current workflows with evidence based practices from Stanford 
University Hospital, including adopting a simple checklist to utilize during such events. Our next 
obstetric simulation is planned for January 4th and will focus on management of hypertensive 
emergencies in pregnancy.  

New Business 

I am very excited to present a high level overview of a Perinatal Tier 2 project for the 2022 year. 
Lisa Matheny, the Director of Risk Management and Patient Safety is going to present a lecture 
and interactive class to all Perinatal nursing staff, obstetricians, and pediatricians starting in 
January 2022. The session will begin in January and be offered again in March and May.  The 
sessions will include the following topics:  

• Open discussion on Perinatal practices and team dynamics 

• Promoting and achieving a culture of safety 

• Conflict resolutions 

• Role playing difficult cases 

• Professional liability and communicating with confidence 
Our goal is to make a team of experts into an expert team!  
 

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California  93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
  

Improving our communities, one life at a time. 
One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

 

Page 102 of 109



 

DATE:                January 2022 
TO: Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Tammy Andersen, Perioperative Manager       
RE:  Department Update  

REPORT DETAIL 
New Business 

• The OR Flooring Project starting January 3rd.

• After 40 years Ann Wagoner retired but will be back two days a week to help support the
OR Flooring Project.

• Tammy Andersen transitioned to the role of Perioperative Manager.

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
Improving our communities, one life at 

a time. One Team. One Goal. Your 
 

Page 103 of 109



DATE:                January 2022 
TO: Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
FROM:               Jose Garcia, Language Access Services Manager 
RE:  Department Update  

REPORT DETAIL 

The Language Access Services Department supports the District’s mission by ensuring timely, 
and accurately language or communication assistance is provided to limited English proficient 
patients and/or their legal representatives. 

Old Business 
The Department successfully implemented the transition of the District’s over the phone 
interpreting service provider, and in conjunction with the deployment of 23 iPads for video or 
voice interpreting services; access to interpreter services at all clinical and non-clinical access 
points, embodies improving our communities, one life at a time, providing equal access to high 
quality health care services.      

New Business 
Providing language or communication assistance may include, but it is not limited to translation 
of Vital Documents, significant communications, and significant publications, as well as oral 
interpreting services. 

The Department’s 21/22 budget includes providing a 40-hour healthcare interpreters’ training for 
the District’s qualified workforce. During the next quarter, the Department will request Chief’s 
approval for, and start the training’s planning and scheduling.  

The Department is working in partnership with Compliance, and the Forms Committee in getting 
forms updated and translated as needed. 

Language Access and Health Informatics are working on getting Cerner to build the necessary 
fields to collect all legally required information on patient’s primary and preferred language, and 
their LEP (Limited English Proficient) status.  

150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 
Improving our communities, one life at a time. 

One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

Page 104 of 109



FY2021 Actual Actual Actual Estimate Estimate
Unit of Measure Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21
Cash, CDs & LAIF Investments 51,541,102        51,660,613              51,218,981           44,626,386           48,069,372        
Days Cash on Hand 194                      192                           192                         164                        175                      

Gross Accounts Receivable 40,330,632        39,434,879              38,647,332           45,621,898           45,730,808        
Average Daily Revenue 497,079              459,646                   500,563                 488,452                507,215              
Gross Days in AR 81.14 85.79 77.21 93.40 83.82

Key Statistics
Acute Census Days 171 156 170 314 314
Swing Bed Census Days 24 0 0 0 20
Total Inpatient Utilization 195 156 170 314 334
Avg. Daily Inpatient Census 6.3 5.0 5.7 10.5 11.1

Emergency Room Visits 712                      680                           619                         592                        633                      
Emergency Room Visits Per Day 23                        22                             21                           19                          21                        
Operating Room Inpatients 6                          6                               19                           13                          14                        
Operating Room Outpatient Cases 101                      86                             84                           87                          86                        
Observation Days 77                        59                             62                           56                          49
RHC Clinic Visits 2,302                  2,683                        2,780                     2,956                     2,708                  
NIA Clinic Visits 1,829                  1,808                        1,731                     1,961                     1,809                  
Outpatient Hospital Visits 4,472                  4,762                        4,452                     4,267                     4,234                  

Hospital Operations
Inpatient Revenue 2,774,294           2,563,061                3,191,692              3,354,047             3,958,181           
Outpatient Revenue 11,561,101        10,530,380              10,697,544           10,581,296           10,120,970        
Clinic (RHC) Revenue 1,074,051           1,155,594                1,127,660              1,206,664             1,137,285           
Total Revenue 15,409,445        14,249,034              15,016,896           15,142,006           15,216,437        
Revenue Per Day 497,079              459,646                   500,563                 488,452                507,215              
% Change (Month to Month) -7.53% 8.90% -2.42% 3.84%

Salaries 2,138,510           2,212,918                2,099,073              2,251,406             2,363,977           
PTO Expenses 249,855              249,855                   249,855                 249,855                249,856              
Total Salaries Expense 2,388,364           2,462,773                2,348,927              2,501,261             2,613,832           
Expense Per Day 77,044                79,444                     78,298                   80,686                  87,128                
% Change 3.12% -1.44% 3.05% 7.98%

Operating Expenses 6,882,843           7,013,237                7,294,767              7,285,504             7,477,297           
Operating Expenses Per Day 222,027              226,233                   243,159                 235,016                249,243              

Capital Expenses 36,416                3,000                        -                         -                         9,546                  
Capital Expenses Per Day 1,175                  97                             -                         -                         318                      

Total Expenses 8,511,732           8,533,790                8,636,587              8,744,986             8,837,738           
Total Expenses Per Day 274,572              275,284                   287,886                 282,096                294,591              

Gross Margin 1,732,096           (81,114)                    645,366                 588,339                435,250              

Debt Compliance
Current Ratio (ca/cl) > 1.50 2.13 2.10 2.84 2.36 2.36
Quick Ratio (Cash + Net AR/cl) > 1.33 1.80 1.73 2.29 1.94 1.94
Days Cash on Hand > 75 194                      192                           192                         164                        175                      

Page 105 of 109



Actual Actual Actual Estimate Estimate
FY 2020 FY 2021 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Total Net Patient Revenue 76,229,126            86,844,620     8,614,939             6,932,123                      7,940,133            7,873,843            7,912,547            
IGT Revenues 13,729,686            20,295,927     394,000                1,106,255                      530,242                416,667                416,667                
Total Patient Revenue 89,958,812            107,140,547   9,008,939             8,038,378                      8,470,376            8,290,510            8,329,214            

Cost of Services
Salaries & Wages 26,275,799            27,016,877     2,138,510             2,212,918                      2,099,073            2,251,406            2,363,977            
Benefits 18,316,171            22,382,407     1,618,760             1,635,349                      1,795,655            1,865,201            1,865,201            
Professional Fees 19,573,242            22,565,034     1,871,274             1,896,180                      1,978,664            1,880,419            1,927,430            
Pharmacy 3,105,981              4,035,279       274,517                354,714                         344,942                336,273                344,680                
Medical Supplies 4,199,962              4,136,111       277,812                255,157                         358,049                344,676                353,293                
Hospice Operations 505,000                 -                   -                         -                                  -                        -                        -                        
Athena EHR System 1,164,797              1,480,088       112,267                114,869                         132,491                123,341                126,424                
Other Direct Costs 4,813,483              5,810,258       589,703                544,051                         585,893                484,188                496,293                
Total Direct Costs 77,954,434            87,426,053     6,882,843             7,013,237                      7,294,767            7,285,504            7,477,297            

Gross Margin 12,004,378            19,714,494     1,732,096             (81,114)                          645,366                588,339                435,250                
Gross Margin % 13.34% 18.40% 20.11% -1.17% 8.13% 7.47% 5.50%

General and Administrative Overhead
Salaries & Wages 4,681,985              3,906,499       319,290                323,708                         319,740                325,542                341,819                
Benefits 4,150,743              3,754,395       283,420                299,665                         312,500                312,866                320,688                
Professional Fees 2,337,874              3,978,605       421,033                420,876                         222,237                371,993                381,293                
Depreciation and Amortization 4,275,662              4,094,658       370,335                358,995                         347,178                332,720                341,038                
Other Administrative Costs 1,412,451              1,396,332       234,811                117,308                         140,164                116,361                119,270                
Total General and Administrative Overhead 16,858,715            17,130,488     1,628,889             1,520,552                      1,341,820            1,459,482            1,504,107            

Net Margin (18,584,023)          (17,711,920)    103,207                (1,601,666)                     (696,454)              (871,143)              (1,068,857)           
Net Margin % -24.38% -20.39% 1.20% -23.10% -8.77% -11.06% -13.51%

Financing Expense 2,362,880              1,413,155       179,672                179,585                         176,035                176,219                176,219                
Financing Income 2,372,608              1,755,654       173,785                173,785                         173,785                (0)                          (0)                          
Investment Income 600,420                 387,349           23,766                  16,876                            20,534                  16,474                  16,474                  
Miscellaneous Income 1712917.01 1361183.52 172,440                66,574                            9,045,548            125,242                125,242                

Net Surplus (2,531,273)             4,675,038       687,526                (417,762)                        8,897,620            (488,980)              (686,695)              

Page 106 of 109



 

1 
Identity Theft Red Flags Rule Policy 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: Identity Theft Red Flags Rule Policy 
Owner: Admission Services Manager Department: Admissions Services 
Scope:  District Wide 
Date Last Modified: 12/01/2021 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 1 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date: 12/18/2019 
 
PURPOSE:  

As an issuer of credit to recipients of its healthcare services, Northern Inyo HealthCare District (NIHD) adopts 
an Identify Theft Prevention Program to assist in identifying, detecting, and mitigating risks of identity theft 
affecting patients of the Hospital and clinics.  

POLICY: 

It is NIHD’s intent to provide safeguards to protect patients by detecting Red Flags and preventing or mitigating 
Identity Theft without impacting appropriate care of patients or compliance with the Emergency Medical 
Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA). 

DEFINITIONS: 

I. Identity theft - fraudulently using the identifying information of another person. 
II. Medical Identity Theft - When an individual assumes or attempts to assume the identity of another 

person through fraudulent means or false pretenses and obtains  or attempts to obtain medical service 
or goods, or to make false claims for medical services or goods. 

III. Red Flag - a pattern, practice, or specific activity that indicates the possible existence of Identity Theft. 
 
 

PROCEDURE:  

I. IDENTIFICATION OF RED FLAGS  
 Activities involving Identity Theft generally fall within one of the following general types of red flags:  

A. Suspicious documents 
B. Suspicious personal identifying information, such as a suspicious address 
C. Unusual use of – or suspicious activity relating to – a covered account 
D. Alerts from others (e.g. customer, identity theft victim, or law enforcement) 

 
II. DECTECTION OF RED FLAGS 

 
A. NIHD has adopted the following procedures to aid in the detection of red flags for identity theft: 

 
i. New Patient - Obtain appropriate identifying information and insurance information. This 

should include the following: 

Page 107 of 109



 

2 
Identity Theft Red Flags Rule Policy 

1. Full legal name 
2. Date of Birth 
3. Address 
4. Make copy of Government issued or other valid picture ID, e.g.   Driver’s License 
5. When applicable, make copy of patient’s insurance card 
6. Verify eligibility and insurance company’s information 
7. Have patient sign Conditions of Admission 

 
ii. Existing Patient 

Verify and update the personal and insurance information listed 
 

1. During each return patient visit registration have patient show valid picture ID 
2. Make copy of insurance card, including existing insurance listed 
3. Verify eligibility and insurance company’s information, including existing insurance 

listed 
4. Verify validity of requests for changes of billing addresses 
5. Have patient sign Conditions of Admission with each patient visit         registration 
6. Verify identification of patients before releasing any personal information. 

 
iii. Emergency Care – No Delay 

Providing identification is not a condition for obtaining emergency care. The process of 
confirming a patient’s identity must never delay the provision of an appropriate medical 
screening examination or necessary stabilizing treatment for emergency medical conditions. 
 

III. PREVENTION AND MITIGATION OF IDENTITY THEFT  
A. If a patient notifies NIHD of possible identity theft in regard to their medical record or bill, an 

investigation will be coordinated with the appropriate department(s) (e.g., Patient Financial 
Services, Compliance, and Medical Records) pursuant to bill, an investigation will be coordinated 
with the appropriate department(s)) pursuant to NIHD established departmental procedures. 
 

B. In determining an appropriate response to a red flag or other threat of identity theft, NIHD will 
consider aggravating factors that may heighten the risk of identity theft, such as a data security 
incident that results in unauthorized access to a patient’s account records, or notice that a patient 
has become aware of someone fraudulently claiming to obtain medical services in the name of the 
patient. 

 
C. Appropriate responses may include: 

 
i. Monitoring a covered account for evidence of identity theft 

ii. Contacting the patient 
iii. Placing Billing Hold on account 
iv. Reopening a covered account with a new account number 
v. Not opening a new covered account 

vi. Closing an existing covered account 
vii. Notifying Compliance, law enforcement, and the designated governmental hotlines; or 

viii. Determining that no response is warranted under the particular circumstances. 
 

D. Internal Notifications: 

Page 108 of 109



 

3 
Identity Theft Red Flags Rule Policy 

Any NIHD employee who becomes aware of a potential or actual breach of personal 
information should report it to their manager and/or the Compliance Department for follow-up. 
The Compliance Office shall be notified of all breaches. 
 

E. External Notification: 
The Compliance Office will work with the appropriate department(s) to determine if  any 
reports to outside agencies are required. 
 

IV. PROGRAM OVERSIGHT 
A. This policy shall be reviewed annually. 

 
B. The Compliance Office shall report to the Board, at least annually, on Northern Inyo 

HealthCare District’s compliance with the identity theft program. 
 

REFERENCES: 

1. FTC’s Identity Theft Prevention Red Flag Rules-16 C.F.R. Section 681.2 (2008) Fair and Accurate 
Credit Transactions (FACT) Act of 2003. 

2. Code of Federal Regulations – Title 16. (amended Dec 6, 2012)  
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-16/chapter-I/subchapter-F/part-681 

 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 
Photo identification is maintained within the NIHD Hospital Information System/Medical Record.  NIHD 
Medical Records Department manages the document retention. 
 
CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Admission Policy RHC 
 
Supersedes: Not Set 

 

Page 109 of 109


	Table of Contents
	Agenda January 19, 2022 Regular Board Meeting
	January 19 2022, Regular Board Meeting Agenda

	Approval of the Agreement between Northern Inyo Healthcare District and Eastern Sierra Emergency Physicians
	Board of Directors Coversheet, Eastern Sierra Emergency Physicians Renewal Agreement
	Eastern Sierra Emergency Physicians Agreement

	Approval of District Board Resolution 22-01, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan Program
	Board of Directors Coversheet, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan Program-
	District Board Resolution 22-01, Nondesignated Public Hospital Bridge Loan Program

	Policy and Procedure Approval, Charge Capture Policy and Procedure
	Charge Capture Policy and Procedure

	Recommendation to Appoint a Board Member to the Compliance and Business Ethics Committee
	Board of Directors Coversheet, Recommendation to Appoint a Board Member to the Compliance and Business Ethics Committee

	Northern Inyo Healthcare District Orthopedic Services December Highlight
	Board of Directors Coversheet, NIHD Orthopedics Services December Highlights
	NIHD Orthopedic Services December Highlight

	Chief of Staff
	Medical Executive Report
	Radiology Privilege Form

	Consent Agenda
	District Board Resolution 22-02, to continue to allow Board meetings to be held virtually
	December 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	December 29, 2021 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	Operating Room Flooring Replacement Update
	Chief Executive Officer Report
	Chief Medical Officer Report
	Chief Nursing Officer Report
	Financial and Statistical reports as of November 30, 2021
	Approval of Policies and Procedures


